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ARER
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Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
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Hong Kong
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, aged 81, is Chairman of
Raymond Industrial Limited (the “Company”). After obtaining
a Bachelor of Engineering Degree (Chemical Engineering)
in Canada in 1959, he spent three years as a lecturer at the
Hong Kong Technical College until 1964 when he founded
the Company.

Mr. Wong, John Ying Man, aged 51, was appointed
to the board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of the
Company as the executive Director on 15 September 1997.
He graduated from the University of Manchester Institute
of Science & Technology in 1987 and joined the Company
in the same year. He worked as an engineer, project
coordinator, engineering manager and then general manager
for operations.

Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin, aged 51, son of Mr. Wong,
Wilson Kin Lae, was appointed as a non-executive Director
on 18 July 2001 and re-designated as an executive Director
on 19 April 2002. He became a deputy executive chairman
on 19 April 2007. Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in
Chemical Engineering and a Master Degree in Economics.
He is a U.S. Certified Public Accountant (CPA), a Certified
Management Accountant (CMA) and is certified in financial
management (CFM). He is an independent non-executive
Director of Modern Beauty Salon Holdings Limited (Stock
code: 0919) and Nan Nan Resources Enterprise Limited
(Stock code: 1229), both companies whose shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”).

Mr. Mok, Kin Hing, aged 54, was alternate Director to Mr.
Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, the Chairman and executive Director
of the Company until 1st July 2008 when he was appointed
as an executive Director with effect from 1 July 2008.
Mr. Mok joined the Company as a production planning
coordinator in 1990. He was appointed as a production
manager in 1993 and general manager of Raymond (Panyu
Nansha) Electrical Appliances Development Co. Ltd. in 1996.
Since 2005, Mr. Mok has been appointed as a member
of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference in
Guangzhou City, Nansha District.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

AEEEREREEEBB/N

Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit, aged 53, was appointed
a non-executive Director on 26 May 2014. Prior to the
appointment, he was an alternate Director to Dr. Wong,
Philip Kin Hang (retired non-executive Director) on 4 July
2008. Mr. Wong is a Registered Architect and Authorized
Person in Hong Kong. He is also a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Architects. Mr. Wong is the founder and
executive director of Hong Kong Wine Vault.

Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng, aged 47, was appointed as a
non-executive Director on 3 January 2011. Mr. Xiong
graduated from the Department of Computer Science of
Nankai University and obtained his bachelor degree in
science in July 1992. He then obtained his master degree
in Economics from Nankai University School of Economics
in July 1995. Mr. Xiong joined China North Industries
Corporation in August 1995 and took up the post of
deputy general manager of China North Industries Xiamen
Corporation from October 1999 to November 2000. Mr.
Xiong is currently the chairman and executive director of
AKM Industrial Company Limited (“AKM Industrial”) (Stock
code: 1639), a company whose shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. In November 2000, Mr.
Xiong joined Silver City International (Holdings) Ltd., (“Silver
City”) the substantial shareholder (as defined in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)) of AKM Industrial,
as assistant general manager and was promoted to the
position of deputy general manager in March 2004. He is
a director of Alpha Luck Industrial Limited (“Alpha Luck”),
the substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of AKM Industrial since March 2001 (Alpha Luck is the
subsidiary fully-funded by Silver City, and Silver City is AKM
Industrial’s beneficial owner). Mr. Xiong also serves as a
director of AKM Electronics Industrial (Panyu) Ltd. and AKM
Electronic Technology (Suzhou) Company Limited.

4 RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. Annual Report 2016

EHGENE 5358 0 M2014F 5 A6 BELZ T AIEHITE
E o EL(TR MN2008F 7 A4BEZTAKRAR TR
FET(EERZIERNTES) 2REF - BEXRERE ST
MELMERBTAL - WM EESEREEETE - HhE
AEBEBENBIRARRITES -

BEIFUB R4 - 475 M2011F1A3BEZ T AIEWNTT
FEEORIABRENERARSHERBER 199267 H
IMBIBELEA - HIEN1995F 7 AMESmE A2 K HEE
BB o RRLAERN1995F 8 A AR A T AR
1999 10 A= 2000F 11 A HAERHIEF TEEMA
Al BB - R - RRAEEALTRFEEBRAT
([ZEREZ]) (BRHAIR 1639 ZEERATEE &
EFEZENRMONEBE M EMMAF - 200011 A -
AR AEINARERRR (@) BRAE ([BERAKR]) (HAa%R
BRAIEENTERR 2 —) (TRREAMERIGFESL
MBI (T EWRA])) BEBIE ALK - N7 2004 F 3 A i
EAZRNBEIE—R - BINE 2001 F3 ARBELRFEX
BRAR(EARERBR 22EMBRR, TAESHBEL
HHNEXERMOEERR (ERR LTHA))ES - fREE
NMAEZRINNEEZZEMBRARLEN(ER)ETEEAR
RNAIRLREMNE TR (BN BRAGIZES °



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Ms. Li, Yinghong, aged 54, was appointed as a non-
executive Director with effect from 4 July 2008. Ms. Li is a
non-executive director of AKM Industrial. In July 1985, she
obtained her Bachelor Degree in Corporate Finance and
Accounting from Jiangxi College of Finance. In May 2008,
she obtained a Master Degree in International Management
from Australia National University. From March 2001 to
April 2003, she was the director of Norinco International
Cooperation Company Limited, a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange in China. In June 2003, Ms. Li
joined Silver City International (Holdings) Ltd. as the director
and deputy general manager.

Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung, aged 74, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director in 1988. He is
an entrepreneur with extensive international experience in
garment manufacturing and trading. He is the founder of the
Onwel Group of Companies in 1969 and has been holding
the position of executive chairman since 1982. Also, Mr.
Leung is the executive chairman of Fairtex Muay Thai Fithess
and Equipment (Hong Kong) Limited effected from 25
October 2013. He is an independent non-executive director
of Dickson Concepts (International) Limited (Stock Code:
0113), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Fan Ren Da, Anthony, aged 56, joined in 1994 as
an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Fan holds a
Master’s Degree in Business Administration from the United
States of America. He is the chairman and managing director
of AsialLink Capital Limited. He is also an independent non-
executive director of Technovator International Limited (Stock
Code: 1206), Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (Stock
Code: 0220), Shanghai Industrial Urban Development Group
Limited (Stock Code: 0563), Renhe Commercial Holdings
Company Limited (Stock Code: 1387), Tenfu Cayman
Holdings Ltd. (Stock Code: 6868), Citic Resources Limited
(Stock Code: 1205), Guodian Technology & Environment
Group Corporation Limited (Stock Code: 1296), Hong Kong
Resources Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 2882),
China Development Bank International Investment Ltd.
(Stock Code: 1062), LT Commercial Real Estate Limited
(Stock Code: 0112), Neo-Neon Holdings Ltd. (Stock Code:
1868) and CGN New Energy Holdings Co. Ltd. (Stock Code:
1811), all listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

AEEEREREEEBB/N

Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming, aged 80, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 2 July 2004. Mr.
Ng was previously a non-executive director of Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited (Stock code: 0440), a company
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. He has
over 40 years of experience in hire purchase and leasing
finance.

Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson, aged 43, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 1 January
2013. He has more than 15 years of working experience
in investment banking and advising on corporate finance.
He is currently a deputy general manager of Guotai Junan
Capital Limited and independent non-executive directors
of Kingdom Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 0528), Wuzhou
International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1369) and
Huiyin Household Appliances (Holdings) Co., Ltd. (Stock
Code: 1280), companies listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. He also has three years of experience in
the field of auditing and accounting. He is a member of the
American Institute of CPA, a member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountant and a member of CFA
Institute. Mr. Lo obtained his bachelor of commerce degree
from University of British Columbia in 1995.
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| am pleased to present the annual results of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

During the financial year (“FY”) of 2016, the Group continued
to face the challenges of an increase in operating costs
and shortage of skilled labour. However, due to the launch
of a series of new products, and innovative shaving and
beverage products with higher profit margin, and since the
management continued to reduce dependence on manual
labour by replacing them with more automation to increase
production efficiency and adopt leaner manufacturing, the
Group was able to improve its profitability and gross margins.
As a result, for FY2016, despite the Group’s consolidated
turnover only increased to HK$1,019,441,813, representing
an increase of 3.14% as compared with the same period
in the previous year, the net profit of the Group reached
HK$51,011,144, representing an increase of 40.42%, as
compared with the net profit of HK$36,328,469 of the same
period in FY2015. Cash generated from operations was
HK$69,033,791. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of
FY2016 was HK$251,634,475 (HK$28,614,676 of which
were dividend paid out during FY2016) as compared with
HK$244,472,180 at the beginning of FY2016. The positive
operating cash flow and substantial cash balances enable
the Group to continue paying dividends to the shareholders
which are satisfactory to them, and at the same time invest
more in automation processes and advanced technology.

In FY2016, the Group invested HK$22,728,055 to set up
new semi-automated production lines for a series of new
products, and at the same time purchased many injection
moulding machines to support the development of higher
quality grooming and household environmental products in
the coming years. In addition, the Group purchased new
machines which can carry out precision cutting to launch a
series of innovative men shaving and grooming products. In
comparison, the Group expended HK$18,788,932 of capital
expenditure in FY2015. The Group wishes the management
team could develop more innovative and high-end products
with high profits and profit margin for the Group’s customers
by the continued investment in advanced technology.

The Group’s net profit in FY2016 was HK$51,011,144,
representing basic earnings per share of 10.66 Hong Kong
cents (net profit in FY2015 was HK$36,328,469, with basic
earnings per share of 7.65 Hong Kong cents).

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
TEHE

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND
COMMITMENT

WORKPLACE QUALITY

The Group focused on 4 areas to enhance good workplace
quality:

(i) Working conditions: The Group’s labour policies
were in full compliance with the labour laws of the
PRC and Hong Kong as applicable to the staff in the
corresponding locations. The working hours, benefits
and welfares of all staff and workers were also in
compliance with the corresponding local labour laws
and fulfilled the working condition requirements from
the Group’s major customers and US/European retail
stores who conducted regular audits throughout the
year by third parties such as ITS and SGS.

(ii) Health and Safety: The Group was in full compliance
with the labour laws of the PRC and Hong Kong
applicable to the staff in the corresponding locations.
Occupational health and safety KPIs were illustrated
in the chart below:

N EEERARE

THEREER
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(i)

THERR : AEENSTIHRTEFEERARTE
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FY 2016 vs

FY 2015

2016

FY 2016 FY 2015 7z gy

2016 &£ 20154 2015

BB B BB AL

(%)

Number of work injuries TE5&E 24 28 -14.29%
Medical Expenses due to TEEAR

work injuries (HKD) BEEMAY (B%) 149,911.47 74,536.77 101.12%

The management of the Group is proud that they
could provide staff with a safer work place which
led to fewer work injuries in FY2016. However, the
medical expenses incurred were higher in FY2016
than in FY2015 due to a few accidents of relatively
severity. The Group will try to replace hazardous
processes with more automation in FY2017 to lower
the number of work injuries.
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(i)

(iv)

Development and Training: The Group provides
directors and senior executives with latest Listing
Rules training, the Group also provides middle
management, regular employees and production line
workers with various relevant training. The KPIs in the
development and training of the Group are illustrated
in the chart below:

(i)

Chairman’s Statement
TRE®RE

BREEI AREERESMEMITHRAERMK
RANH EWMARRNE  FATREERE  EHE
T UREERTAREKSEAERBEN - BRAAS
BRSNS ERRERIERB2H TR

Average

Training

Hours per

No. of Employee

Employees SEEETY

BE A S

(hrs)

(/NEF)

Middle management HREIRE 409 38
Regular employees ERET 341 52
Production line workers EEHFTA 2,091 926

Labour Standard: The Group adopts recruitment
policies that prevent child labour and forced labour in
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations.
The Group also encourages workers to form labour
unions. A labour union was formed at the Group’s
Nansha, Panyu factory and union representatives
would hold regular meetings throughout the year to
communicate issues that could improve workers’
morale, upgrade the living quarters and working
environment, and report workers/management
disputes to the management of the Group.
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Chairman’s Statement
TEHE

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE

The Group focused on aspects that would enhance
environmental protection and adopted policies that would
lower CO2 emissions during the manufacturing processes,
minimize excessive use of resources such as electricity,
diesel, water and paper.

(i)

Carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions

The chart below illustrates the types of emissions
and their respective emission data. The Group
will continue to strive for measures to lower CO2
emissions.

RERERE
AEBETRDBAREETHNOE  RNTRELE
B2 — LB P RAR AR BEERMES - 4
K RAESRE EIREBOR -

—&1{bhx (CO2) HIHER

TR mER BB SRR - ARES %
B NPT ADRE S IR BRI IS 1 o

FY 2016 vs
FY 2015
2016 &
FY 2016 FY 2015 BB B
2016 20154 20154
BHBE BB B BUEMEL
(%)
Electricity S
(kilotonnes CO2) (FABE —&(bHk) 17.60 17.60 -0.01%
oil pi
(kilotonnes CO2) (FABE —&E(bHk) 0.13 0.26 -50.78%
Gas Eof
(kilotonnes CO2) (FABE —&E(bHk) 0.02 0.02 -11.66%
Total CO2 emission bR E
(kilotonnes) (FAmgE) 17.75 17.88 -0.73%

Additional explanation: Regarding other Greenhouse
gas emissions, such as methane, nitrous oxide,
hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons and sulphur
hexafluoride, since the Group did not adopt
manufacturing processes that would generate other
Greenhouse gas, the management of the Group
believes our manufacturing processes fully comply
with PRC China environmental laws, and we received
certification from PRC China EPA department and
maintained our ISO14001 status.
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Furthermore, the management of the Group, working
with customers and suppliers, has successfully
built a supply chain that fully complied with RoHS
and REACH standards. All the sourced materials
and finished goods have been sampling checked
for RoHS and REACH compliance to ensure no
hazardous waste nor non-hazardous waste were
produced during any manufacturing processes.
Any non-compliant supplier and their materials
would be rejected immediately, and not used in
the manufacturing of finished goods to mitigate
any potential non-compliance risk. Our RoHS and
REACH test lab has also been ISO 17025 certified.

Use of Resources

The chart below illustrates the consumption of
resources by type throughout FY2016 and show
comparative data with that of FY2015:

Chairman’s Statement
TRE®RE

o - AEEEEEMEER B P EM S RoHS
N REACH B kA fESE - FrB JNER KK &
EBASHAE IR ER - LATS A RoHS & REACH B2 - #E
REERBRIECREDEEEBERESLE - TE
56 RoHS I REACH 12 22 89 ¥t K 4 e v = B
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FY 2016 vs
FY 2015
2016 £
FY 2016 FY 2015 B R B
2016 F 20154 20154
BHE B B BUEME L
(%)
Electricity S
(GWh) (FIKEL/ ) 22.42 22.43 -0.01%
oil JH
(tonnes) (AWE) 40.81 82.89 -50.78%
Gas K/
(kgs) (F5) 8,387.45 9,901.05 -11.66%
Water FoKE
(000m?) (F2HK) 268.58 305.50 -12.09%
Packaging Materials Used HEmTAes%
for Finished Goods MEEE
(tonnes) (AWE) 2,331,53 N/A 8 A N/AFREA

The Group was particularly pleased with the
environmental performance as our operating team
achieved lower CO2 emissions and used less non-
renewable resources in FY2016.
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‘ Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

12

(iii)

Additional explanation: From the chart on the Use of
Resources above, water consumption decreased by
approximately 12% in FY2016 compared with that
in FY2015 because of better awareness of water
preservation and the recycling of more industrial
use water. Also, oil and gas usage were significantly
reduced as the management of the Group invented
customer-built electric fork-lifts that reduces the
need to use diesel/gas based fork-lifts for internal
transportation of parts and materials. Total packaging
material used for finished goods depends on the
product mix, and the Group, as a responsible OEM
manufacturer, continues to discuss way to minimize
use of packaging material with our customers.

The environment and natural resources

Apart from the effort shown above to minimize
emissions and use of resources, the Group also
initiated energy savings projects in FY2012 and
FY2013. During these two years, the Group invested
in solar energy panel to heat up water for our
workers and installed LED lightings in our offices
(both in Hong Kong and in the PRC) and in our
manufacturing facilities in the PRC. Both energy
savings initiatives not only generated savings for
the Group, but also fostered a strong corporate
culture to promote sustainability from workers to
top management. Such culture enabled the Group
to meet the ESG reporting requirements early since
FY2012, and invested early to build up supply chain
loyalty, customer loyalty and enhanced our Group
reputation and image in Guangzhou, the PRC.
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OPERATING PRACTICES

The Group focused on key areas to enhance management
and formulate some operating best practice procedures
by tightening corporate governance policies and setting
guidelines for preventing staff and workers from committing
frauds and engaging in illegal activities.

U

(i)

(i)

Anti-corruption policy was straightly enforced
among all management personnel and all suppliers
in the Group’s supply chain. The Group was not
aware of any legal cases regarding corruption of the
Group’s management and employees. The Group
also has an independent internal audit department
reporting directly to the chairman of the Group’s
audit committee and has a whistleblowing system to
notify the audit committee of any potential fraud and
malpractices.

Product Safety: The Group has a policy to work
closely with customers to cooperate on any recalls
and safety/health related issue; and the Group has a
quality system that handled customers (and related
products) complaints. Root cause analysis would
be conducted on each major customer complaint to
avoid re-occurrence of product defects.

Risk Management: The Group has updated the
policy on risk management, and the Board, the Audit
Committee, and the Management team will work with
outside consultants and auditors to identify potential
risks not previously identified. At the end of FY2016,
because of environmental regulation changes in the
PRC, a number of paper mills were forced to shut
down, leading to temporary shortage of packaging
related material. The Group management has already
implemented counter measures to mitigate such risk
that might lead to disruption of production.
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Chairman’s Statement
TEHE

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

The Group focused on key areas to enhance management
in order to create a better community by implementing
programs that built a better society through a wide range of
activities and initiatives:

U

(i)

(i)

(v)

Encourage the use of recycled paper: The Group
has begun a program to use more recycled paper in
operations including printing interim & annual report
booklets; and working with customers to print product
instruction books by using recycled paper materials.

Investment in new talents: The Group continued
to sponsor programs at Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and members of the Group gave guest
lectures at Hong Kong Polytechnic University during
FY2016. Members of the Group also sponsored the
Music Alive! programme at the Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology; and acted as independent
manager at the TWGHs Wong Fut Nam College.

Education involvement: Members of the Group’s
management participated in fundraising charity
concert organized by the Hong Kong Philharmonic
Society to support community programmes for
young musicians from less privileged families; and
participated in Intimacy of Creativity, an international
music composer symposium organized by Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology.

Corporate Governance: Members of the Group’s
management founded the HKINED Association (Hong
Kong Independent Non-Executive Directors Association)
in October 2015 in Hong Kong, and held the first Greater
China INED Forum on 22 November 2016 to promote
better corporate governance practices.

Create a better Society: Members of the Group’s
management actively participated in fundraising event
for the Hong Kong Correctional Services to support
education programmes for prison inmates. Members
of the Groups also participated in fundraising event
for St John’s Cathedral during the year.

Wong, Wilson Kin Lae
Chairman
Hong Kong, 28 March 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL POSITION

The liquidity position of the Group was good. Its current ratio
was 3.20 as of 31 December 2016, compared with 3.08
as of 31 December 2015. The gearing ratio was 0.30 as of
31 December 2016 (31 December 2015: 0.31) and it was
computed by the total liabilities over the net assets.

During FY2016, the Group’s trade receivables turnover
stood at 77 days, compared with 68 days in FY2015. The
inventory turnover in FY2016 was 49 days, compared with
46 days in FY2015.

Bank balances and cash were HK$251,634,475 as of 31
December 2016 (2015: HK$244,472,180), representing an
increase of HK$7,162,295 as compared to the figures in the
same period in FY2015, which was mainly due to stronger
cash flow generated from operations.

There were no bank borrowings as of 31 December 2016,
and the Group’s debt to equity ratio was 30% as of 31
December 2016 (2015: 31%).

The Group had no contingent liabilities as of 31 December
2016 (2015: Nil).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year, the capital structure of the Company has
not been changed with details shown in note 20(a) to the
financial statements.

FINAL AND SPECIAL DIVIDEND

The Board of the Company has proposed a final dividend of
4 Hong Kong cents per ordinary share and special dividend
of 2 Hong Kong cents per ordinary share for the year ended
31 December 2016. The proposed final dividend and special
dividend, if approved by the shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, will be paid on Wednesday, 14
June 2017 to the shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Wednesday, 7 June
2017.

BEEFWE D

B BUIR IR

AEFBNESTRESAME - R2016F12A31H » A&
BzE&REEXAE32 KR20159F12 831 H A£3.08°
AEBzEREBENLE X A030(2015F12 A318 :
0.31) ' sTEEE LB BERBERIAEETE -

R2016 FHFE  AEEMEIRERERA77 X Bt
2015 BFER6S K » 2016 F B FE1F EEE A49K
L2015 FEIBRFR 46 K ©

MR2016F12A31H R ITE&EH LR 2B A BE
251,634,475 T (20154 : & #244,472,1807C ) » £ 2015
FHBERMEIN T B 716220570 - TERAKEES
ZIRER -

B2016F 12831 AEBTEIFETER AEE
MR2016F 12 A31H 2 & & # &= I ¥ B 30% (20154 :
31%) °

MR2016F 12 A31H » KEBEWESNABE(2015F « ) o

B

KEFERRNBZERNEEWESE) - FIBHRIEREMN
¥ 20(a) °

RERERIRE

BEEEFZREEHE2016F 12 A1 B IR BT Y
ARABEMIRERRESRE B ABE 2 - E&
ZABREREFRREBEAERITZRERFAE LN
BERE - RBBR2017F6 A14H(EH =) RE TR
20176 A7H(EH=) B EAM EZRE -

I AN NREXARAF

15



g

6

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed for
the following periods:

(1)

For the purpose of determining shareholders who are
entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual
general meeting to be held on Thursday, 25 May
2017 (the “2017 AGM"), the register of members of
the Company will be closed from Monday, 22 May
2017 to Thursday, 25 May 2017, both days inclusive.
In order to be qualified for attending and voting at the
2017 AGM, all transfer documents, accompanied
by the relevant share certificates, should be lodged
for registration with the Company’s share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F., Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30
p.m. on Friday, 19 May 2017.

For the purpose of determining shareholders who are
qualified for the final dividend and special dividend,
the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Monday, 5 June 2017 to Wednesday,
7 June 2017, both days inclusive. In order to be
qualified for the final dividend and special dividend,
all transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant
share certificates, should be lodged for registration
with the Company’s share registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-
1716, 17/F., Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 2
June 2017.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

The Group had no charges on assets as of 31 December
2016 (2015: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The Group expects to face more new challenges in FY2017
due to the expected fluctuation in RMB exchange rate,
coupled with the shortage of packaging material in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) towards the end
of FY2016. Despite the optimistic macroeconomic outlook
for exports of the OEM manufacturing industry, sales in the
PRC has not reached expectation due to the weakening of
RMB. The Group will continue to find a balanced strategy to
develop both the export overseas market and the sales of
the PRC domestic market at the same time.

The Group will continue to invest in new technology which
assists the Group with launching new innovative products.
The Group expects to place even more resources to
explore emerging markets, such as India, in FY2017 as the
markets in Japan, the United States of America, and Europe
remained weak in FY2016. The management of the Group
will seek new opportunities with existing and new customers
at the same time, as well as forming even stronger
partnerships with key strategic customers to increase the
turnover of the Group.

During FY2016, the Group successfully launched several
new air purifiers, a series of successful new grooming
products, as well as a series of men shavers with innovative
cutting system. The design of such new men shavers even
received the Best Shaver award of the CQ magazine in
the United Kingdom, which proved that the research and
development skills as well as the design ability of the Group
can assist customers in developing their own innovative
products. The Group, together with our customers, expect
to launch a series of new products in India, another
emerging country in FY2017. The Group believes that India
is a fast growing country with great potential to rapidly grow
their consumer market. The Group will continue to seek
similar cooperation opportunities with more customers, and
launch more innovative products in the emerging market.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEBNmR DM

In order to speed up the launch of products, the Group
invested in upgrading the “Smart Nexus” of various operating
systems, including “Smart” logistic system linking to ERP
system and Cloud database; “Smart” robotic system in
facilitating injection moulding and paint spraying processes;
and a “Smart” working environment that increases the co-
dependency relationship between people, machines and
automations. In FY2017, the Group will further extend our
“Smart” operating solutions to include launching a new bar
code inventory tracking system to improve logistic flow with
fewer workers and fewer human errors; as well as a custom-
built injection moulding monitoring system to keep track of
moulding cycles, moulding history and tooling life.

Finally, in order to better manage risk, the management has
already implemented a risk management system to calculate
certain key performance indicators (“KPIs”) in FY2017 to
focus on lowering financial and operating risks in important
areas (such as weekly and monthly graphical KPIs to keep
track of price trend of certain critical components in the
supply chain). In addition, the Group has completed the
installation of new firewalls and tightened Cloud security to
lower cyber risks and will continue to upgrade the Group’s IT
systems to avoid risks caused by the use of invalid softwares
and hardwares.

STAFF

The Group currently employs approximately 35 Hong Kong
staff members and provides them with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme. Our factory in the PRC employs
approximately 429 staff members, and workers employed
directly or indirectly ranged from 2,400 to 2,600 persons
during the year. Remuneration is determined by reference to
their qualifications, experiences and performances.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend the Board’s
appreciation to all our staff for their hard work and dedication
throughout the year.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Most of the Group’s transactions were conducted in the
United States dollars, British Pound, Hong Kong dollars
and Renminbi. The Group does not foresee any substantial
exposure to foreign currency fluctuations and thus use of
financial instruments for exchange rate hedging purpose is
not considered.
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The Board has the pleasure to submit the annual report
together with the audited financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company is incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong
and has its registered office and principal place of business
at Rooms 1801-1813, 18th Floor, Grandtech Centre, 8 On
Ping Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES & BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is sale of electrical
home appliances. The principal activities and other
particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
note 25 to the financial statements. Further discussion and
analysis of these activities as required by Schedule 5 to the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a discussion
of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and
an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business, can be found in the Chairmen’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 7
to 18 of this annual report. This discussion forms part of the
directors’ report.

Review on the Group’s business
performance
- Analysis using financial
key performance indicators
—  Discussion on the Company’s
environmental policies
and performance
—  Discussion on the Company’s
compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations that
have a significant impact
on the Company
Principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group
Future prospects of the Group

Pages 7t0 18
Pages 7 and 15

Pages 10 to 12

Pages 8, 9 and 12

Pages 17 t0 18

Pages 17 to 18
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Report of the Directors
EZERE

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Company maintains good relationships with its
employees by taking all practicable measures, including
but not limited to improving, reviewing and updating its
polices on remuneration and benefits, training, occupational
health and safety, to ensure that all the staff are reasonably
remunerated.

The Company is in good relationship with its customers
and is always improving its communication mechanism with
customers to ensure all the complaints or feedback from its
customers can be informed by the Company in time and the
customers receive service of high quality.

The Company maintains long-period good cooperation with
its domestic and overseas suppliers, which are of good
reputation in the industry.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of revenues from sales of goods and
purchases attributable to the Group’s major customers and
suppliers during the financial year are as follows:

HES  FFRHEB2EERE

ARRBEFRM YA TR REE R B RA RIFAE - %
SHERBIEETEREN  BEAREHRFHH - BF - 58
gl BERBRNL2EHER  UBRRMEEIEGSER
@H o

ARRRFEEFPHRFAR U —ERNREAERP
RUB BB - AR QBB R MERE P HMBERF
SREYWBEFEEERSEMERIRE

ARRETEAZTERFBENERIMIERRSEHR
HefE-

TEEFRMER

AEEZT2HEBMELHASBRFE 2 RBELHE
EERMBAZBDLIT

Percentage of
the Group’s total
rEEzEHBSE

Revenue from

sales of goods Purchases
SHEERHBA PR EE
The largest customer BAEP 20.71% N/A @
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFEET 89.67% N/A @
The largest supplier A IER N/AFREA 16.18%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate ARHEREET N/ATRERA 41.38%

None of directors, their associates or any shareholders of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) had any interest in
these major customers and suppliers during the year.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016 and the state of affairs of the Group as at that date are
set out in the financial statements on pages 59 to 135.
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RECOMMENDED DIVIDEND

An interim dividend of 2 HK cents per share was paid for
the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: 2 HK cents). The
Board proposed the payment of a final dividend of 4 HK
cents per share (2015: 4 HK cents per share) and a special
dividend of 2 HK cents per share (2015: Nil) in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2016.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

No charitable donation was made by the Group during the
year.

ISSUED SHARES

Details of the movements in the issued shares of the
Company during the year are set out in note 20(a) to the
financial statements.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares
during the year ended 31 December 2016.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of
this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae (Chairman)
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man

Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin

Mr. Mok, Kin Hing

Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng

Ms. Li, Yinghong

Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung

Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da

Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming

Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun

Alternate Director:
Mr. Zhang, Yuankun
(alternate to Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae)
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Report of the Directors
EZERE

DIRECTORS (Continued)

During the year and up to the date of this report, Mr. Wong,
Wilson Kin Lae, Mr. Wong, John Ying Man, Mr. Wong,
Raymond Man Hin, Mr. Mok, Kin Hing and Mr. Zhang,
Yuankun are also directors in certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Other directors of the Company’s subsidiaries
during the year and up to the date of this report include: Mr.
Hau, Chi Yung, Mr. Huang, Jingxi, Mr. Lae, Anthony Kwok
Yung, Ms Luk, Yin Yee and Yan, Yong Sheng.

In accordance with Article 112 of the Company’s articles of
association (“Articles of Association”), Mr. Wong, Wilson
Kin Lae; Mr. Mok, Kin Hing; Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit and
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung will retire from the Board
by rotation at the forthcoming 2017 AGM. They will offer
themselves for re-election at the 2017 AGM.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or its subsidiaries which is
not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.

The non-executive Directors do not have specific terms
of appointment but are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests of the Directors
in the shares of the Company, its subsidiaries and other
associated corporations (within the meaning of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded
in the register maintained by the Company under Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

EENARA RO R ABRGER (@)

()  Interests in issued shares () ERITROER
Number of shares
R#E
% of total
Issued
Personal Family  Corporate Share Shares
Capacity Interests  Interests Interests Options Total AREET
&% fEAEE  FEEE  EEER e Bt ROESE
(Note 1) (Note 4)
(1) (34)
Executive Directors
HiTEE
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae Interest of spouse & Interest - 150,000 105,875,181 - 106,025,181 22.09%
BRAEE of a controlled corporation (Note 2) (Note 3)
BB R R R AR AR AR R (#2) (33)
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man Beneficial Owner 11,839,448 - - 6,800,000 18,639,448 3.89%
BREUE ERBA
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin Beneficial owner 16,217,972 - - - 16,217,972 3.38%
BENELE ERBAA
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing Beneficial owner 625,000 - - 5800000 6,425,000 1.35%
BlpEfs EREEA
Non-Executive Directors
FHTEF
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng Beneficial owner - - - 1,950,000 1,950,000 0.41%
BRIFIBE A ERBAA
Ms. Li, Yinghong Benefical owner - - - 4,450,000 4,450,000 0.93%
ML ERBBA
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit Beneficial owner 1,350,000 - - - 1,350,000 0.28%
BAGRE ERBAA
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BUFHTEE
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung Beneficial Owner 4,294,300 - - 393,800 4,688,100 0.98%
REERE ERBAA
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da Beneficial Owner 644,300 - - 993,800 1,638,100 0.34%
BlEksE ERERA
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming Beneficial Owner 1,323,800 - - - 1,323,800 0.28%
R %S ERlBA
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun Beneficial Owner 300,000 - - - 300,000 0.06%
BEERE ERBAA
Alternate Directors
rEE
Mr. Zhang, Yuankun Beneficial Owner 2,630,000 - - - 2,630,000 0.55%
R ERBAA
ZTRNEFR NMEREBEXARAF
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

()  Interests in issued shares (Continued)
Notes:
(1) The shares are registered under the names of the Directors

who are the beneficial shareholders.

2) Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing Hai, spouse of Mr. Wong, Wilson
Kin Lae, is the beneficial shareholder.

Q) Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae is the beneficial shareholder of
91.7% of the issued shares of Broadbridge Enterprises
Limited and Diamond-Harvest Limited, which owned
27,993,421 and 77,881,760 shares respectively in the
Company as at 31 December 2016.

(4) Share options are granted to the Directors under the
Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) approved by the
shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting on 6
June 2003, details of which are set out in the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” below. The Scheme was
terminated on 5 June 2013.

All the interests disclosed under this section represent long
positions in the shares.

(ii)  Interests in underlying shares

Apart from as disclosed under the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” below, none of the Directors or any of
their spouses or children under eighteen years of age
has interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company, or any of its holding
Company, subsidiaries or other associated corporations, as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Annual Report 2016
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into during
the year or subsisting at the end of the year are set out
below,

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Share options are granted to the Directors, employees
and other eligible participants specified under the Scheme
approved by shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting on 6 June 2003. Details of the
Scheme are as follows:

Purpose To give eligible participants incentives or
rewards for their contribution or potential

contribution to the Group

Directors, employees of any member
of the Group or any controlling
shareholder of the Company
(“Controlling Shareholder”) or any
company controlled by a Controlling
Shareholder,

Participants (i

=

(ii) Holder of any securities issued
by any member of the Group or
any Controlling Shareholder of the
Company or any company controlled
by a Controlling Shareholder,

any business or joint venture
partner, contractor, agent or
representative of,

iy (@)

)

any supplier of goods or
services to, or

any customer or distributor of
goods or services of,

(©

Any member of the Group or
any Controlling Shareholder or a
company controlled by a Controlling
Shareholder;

and for the purpose of the Scheme,
shall include any company controlled
by one or more persons belonging to
any of the above classes of persons
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Total number of
ordinary shares
available for issue

and the percentage

of the issued share
capital that it

represents as at the

date of the annual
report

Maximum entitlement
of each participant

Period within which
the securities must
be taken up under
an option

Minimum period for
which an option
must be held before
it can be exercised

Amount payable on
acceptance of the
option

Period within which
payments must be
made

Basis of determining
the exercise price

The remaining life of
the Scheme

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd.

25,807,600 ordinary shares and
5.38 % of the issued share capital

1% of the aggregate number of
ordinary shares in issue in any
12-month period up to the date of
grant

Within a maximum period of 10
years commencing from the date of
grant of such options

Not applicable

HK$1.00 for each lot of share
options granted

21 days from the date of the offer

The higher of (i) the closing price of
the shares on the offer date or (i) the
average closing price of the shares
for the 5 trading days immediately
preceding the offer of the option,
provided that the exercise price is
not less than the nominal value of
the share

The Scheme shall remain in force
until 5 June 2013 unless otherwise
terminated in accordance with the
terms of the Scheme

Annual Report 2016

BT E )

AT E B
BB RN NFER
Z BHMEBR T
BAZBD

BH2RETIR
R LI

BREVERE
iz IR

TTIE BB A
ROFAHIR

BANBRIERA
M2 EE

AN R
R EAE]

BETEECEE

A8l B

25,807,600 % EfA% » (5B EITIA
5.38%

FEEA12@ AR EETERLMR
BERZBERE TEEEARFE
BITEBBRARZ 1%

BEREARELZBITE  EBK
Bz AITEHIR A BB 10F

BHEH ZBERESBEAT

HEH21 BR

ATIIMER 2B =E « ()BRERBK
BELER WM ESL ) BEER
RELBRSEZERA 2 FIKH
B EERBREZITEETAK
RERE R ZEE

BRIFERT B 2GR TR ERLE - &
AET 8BS AME2013F6 A5 H



SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016, the Directors, employees and
other participants had the following interests in options to
subscribe for shares of the Company (market value per
share at 31 December 2016 was HK$1.07) which were
granted for a consideration of HK$1 for each lot of options
under the Scheme. The options are unlisted. Each option
gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share
of the Company.

No. of options

Report of the Directors
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BHRHEAATER  ZFBREDRIEERER S ASH
BRERE1ETRL  ATRBAXFBND (R20165F 12
AS1AEBEMER1.07ET)  BRELE LT - BHE
PR T AN RB—RA QR 2 BB -

BREZA
Market
value
per share
Heldatist  Granted Cancelled Exercised Outstanding Period at date
January during during during at the during which of grant
2016  theyear  theyear  theyear  yearend options are Exercise  of options*
#2016 RER RER RER  RELH  Date exercisable priceper  RERE
£1H81H Rz HiE A iz %7z granted BERETTHE share REAHZ
&% BREZE BREZE BREZE BREHE RLAH pa ]| BRTEE SRWE*
HKS HKS$
BT BT
Directors
B2
Executive Directors:
HITEE -
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man 3,800,000 - - - 3,800,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0910 0.844
EREEE 2008F6A30H 29 June 2018
2008%6H30EZ
2018567290
3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 20 July 2012 20 July 2012 to 0.690 0.690
20127 A20H 19 July 2022
2012%7H2068%
2022675198
ZTRNEFR NMEREBEXARAF
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) BRAETE ()
No. of options
BRESA
Market
value
per share
Heldatist  Granted Cancelled Exercised Outstanding Period at date
January during during during at the during which of grant
2016  theyear  theyear  theyear  yearend options are Exercise  of options*
#2016 RER RER RER  RELNM  Date exercisable priceper  REBRE
£1H81H Rz HiE A iz Tz granted BRETTHE share REAHZ
&% BREZE BREZE BREE BREHE RLAH pa ]| BRTEE SRWE*
HKS HKS$
BT BT
Executive Directors: (Continued)
HITEE: (B)
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin 800,000 - - (800,000) - 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0910 0.844
BEXBAE 2008F6A30H 29 June 2018
2008%6H30EZ
20186 A29H
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing 2,800,000 - - - 24800,000  30June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
ERELE 2008F6A30H 29 June 2018
2008%6H30EZ
201867290
3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000  20July 2012 20 July 2012 to 0.690 0.690
201277200 19 July 2022
2012%7H2068%
20227 A 190
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EEEWRE
SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) BRAETE ()
No. of options
BRESA
Market
value
per share
Heldatist  Granted Cancelled Exercised Outstanding Period at date
January during during during at the during which of grant
2016  theyear  theyear  theyear  yearend options are Exercise  of options*
#2016 RER RER RER  RELNM  Date exercisable priceper  REBRE
£1H81H Rz HiE A iz Tz granted BRETTHE share REAHZ
2t BREZR BREZE BREYE BREZE REAH pa ]| BRTEE SRWE*
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Non-Executive Directors:
FHTEE -
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng 450,000 - - - 450,000 30 June 2008 30June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
RIFBEE 2008F6A30H 29 June 2018
2008%6H30EZ
20186 A29H
300,000 - - - 300,000  60Qctober2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009%10A6H 5 October 2019
2000F10A6HZE
201951050
1,200,000 - - - 1,200,000  20July 2012 20 July 201210 0.690 0.690
20127 A20H 19 July 2022
2012%7H2068%
20227 A 190
Ms. Li, Yinghong 1,750,000 - - - 1,750,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
AL L 2008F6A30H 29 June 2018
2008%6H30EZ
20186 A29H
1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000  6October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009%10A6H 5 October 2019
2000F10A6HZE
2019%10A5H
1,200,000 - - - 1,200,000 20 July 2012 20 July 201210 0.690 0.690
20127 A20H 19 July 2022
2012%7H2068%
20227 A 190
ZTRNEFR NMEREBEXARAF 29
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) BRAETE ()
No. of options
BRESA
Market
value
per share
Heldatist  Granted Cancelled Exercised Outstanding Period at date
January during during during at the during which of grant
2016  theyear  theyear  theyear  yearend options are Exercise  of options*
#2016 RER RER RER  RELH  Date exercisable priceper  RERE
£1H81H Rz HiE A iz Tz granted BRETTHE share REAHZ
&% BREZE BREZE BREE BREHE RLAH pa ]| BRTEE SRWE*
HKS HKS$
BT BT
Non-Executive Directors: (Continueq)
HEHTEE - (B)
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit 450,000 - - (450,000) - 30June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0910 0.844
BAMREE 2008F6A30H 29 June 2018
2008%6H30EZ
20186 A29H
300,000 - - (300,000) - 60ctober 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009%10A6H 5 October 2019
2000F10A6HZE
201951058
600,000 - - (600,000) - 20 July 2012 20 July 201210 0.690 0.690
20127 A20H 19 July 2022
2012%7H2068%
20227 A 190
Indepenclent Non-Executive Directors:
BUFHTEE -
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung 393,800 - - - 393,800 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
REERE 2008F6A30H 29 June 2018
2008%6H30EZ
20186 A29H
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) BRAETE ()
No. of options
BRESA
Market
value
per share
Heldatist  Granted Cancelled Exercised Outstanding Period at date
January during during during at the during which of grant
2016  theyear  theyear  theyear  yearend options are Exercise  of options*
#2016 RER RER RER  RELNM  Date exercisable priceper  REBRE
£1H81H Rz HiE A iz Tz granted BRETTHE share REAHZ
&% BREZE BREZE BREE BREHE RLAH pa ]| BRTEE SRWE*
HKS HKS$
BT BT
Independent Non-Executive Directors: (Continued)
BUHHTEE (&
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da 393,800 - - - 393,800 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0910 0.844
BERE 2008F6A30H 29 June 2018
2008%6H30EZ
2018567290
300,000 - - - 300,000  60Qctober2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009%10A6H 5 October 2019
2000F10A6HZE
201951058
300,000 - - - 300,000  20July2012 20 July 201210 0.690 0.690
20127 A20H 19 July 2022
2012%7H2068%
20227 A 190
Employees 3,035,000 - (470,0000  (330,000) 2,235,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
B8 2008F6A30H 29 June 2018
2008%6H30EZ
20186 A29H
400,000 - (140,000) - 260000  60October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009%10A6H 5 October 2019
2000F10A6HZE
2019510 F5H
2,198,000 - (773,000) - 1425000  20July 2012 20 July 201210 0.690 0.690
20127 A20H 19 July 2022
2012%7H2068%
20227 A 190
ZTRNEFR NMEREBEXARAF 31
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

No. of options

BT E )

BRESA
Market
value
per share
Heldat1st  Granted Cancelled Exercised Outstanding Period at date
January during during during at the during which of grant
2016  theyear  theyear  theyear  yearend options are Exercise  of options*
#2016 RER RER RER  RELH  Date exercisable priceper  RERE
£1A1A Rz i iz KTz  granted BRETTE share REAHZ
&% BREZE BREZE BREE BREHE RLAH pa ]| BRTEE SRWE*
HKS HKS$
BT BT
Other eligible persons 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0910 0.844
AftRERAL 2008F6A30H 29 June 2018
200846 H30EZ
20186 A29H
29,670,600 - (1,383,000 (2,480,000) 25,807,600
Notes: Bk -

The options granted to the Directors are registered under the names
of the Directors who are the beneficial owners.

*

Being the weighted average closing price of the Company’s
ordinary shares immediately before the dates on which the
options were granted or exercised (as the case may be).

Information on the accounting policy for the options granted
and the weighted average value per option is provided
in note 2(m) and note 19 to the financial statements
respectively.

Apart from disclosed above, at no time during the year
ended 31 December 2016 was the Company, or any of
its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
As at 31 December 2016, according to the register of

members kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO and so far as is known to, or can be ascertained

Report of the Directors
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FTERRREADF 2RO REERD 2 Es

PR 20164F 12 A31 B » AR AR K 7 5 160 5 336 15 4R
EGFBEZBRRZLM  HESEELAEEREBTMKE
R THIAL/ BR(TERESE) RAQRMRD - HEEIR

after reasonable enquiry by the Directors, the following 3 REFHF B IRIEFEHIEFIZE XV EE 2 & 37 BB IE AR
persons/entities, other than a Director, had an interest in ~ AA R 2 e ¢
the shares and underlying shares and debentures of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO:
Number of shares
ROBE
% of total
issued
Registered Corporate Family Total shares
Capacity shareholders interests interest g ER CLE
a4 BEEERR EEER FEER RORKEHE RGED =
Substantial shareholders
TERR
Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing Hai Beneficial Owner & 150,000 106,875,181 - 106,025,181 22.09%
FMELL Interest of spouse (Note 1)
Enfa AREENER (381)
Broadbridge Enterprises Beneficial Owner 27,993,421 - - 27,993,421 5.83%
Limited 6 7N (Note 2)
(5t2)
Diamond-Harvest Limited Beneficial Owner 77,881,760 - - 77,881,760 16.23%
EaiBA (Note 3)
(53)
Silver Talent Development Limited ~ Beneficial Owner 53,080,800 - - 53,080,800 11.06%
RUBRBRAA BRBEAA
Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang Interest of a controlled - 40,205,688 - 40,205,688 8.38%
corporation (Note 4)
iNee = ol (5t4)
Mrs. Wong Cheng, Interest of a controlled - 40,205,688 - 40,205,688 8.38%
Gertude Kwok Cheung corporation (thg 4
IR B S (34)
Ho Kit Man Inc. Beneficial Owner 40,119,688 - - 40,119,688 8.36%
ERBEBA (Note 4)
(5t4)
Webb, David Michael Beneficial owner 7,581,000 16,355,000 - 23,936,000 5.00%
&interest of a (Note 5)
controlled corporation (55)
ERBA ARZEHEENER
ZTRNEFR NMEREBEXARAF
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

Notes:

(1) These shares were held through Broadbridge Enterprises
Limited and Diamond-Harvest Limited, companies
beneficially controlled by Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing Hai and
her spouse, Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae.

) These shares were held through Broadbridge Enterprises
Limited, a company controlled by Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing
Hai and Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae.

Q) These shares were held through Diamond-Harvest Limited,
a company controlled by Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing Hai and
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae.

(4) These shares were held through Ho Kit Man Inc. and
Sunnydale Enterprises Holdings Ltd., companies controlled
by Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang and his spouse, Mrs. Wong
Cheng, Gertude Kwok Cheung.

5) These shares were held through Preferable Situation Assets
Limited, a company controlled by Mr. Webb, David Michael.

All the interests disclosed under this section represent long
positions in the shares of the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available and within
the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of
the directors of the Company is currently in force and was
in force throughout this year. The Company has purchased
suitable insurances for the Directors with respect to their
possible legal proceedings.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS

Except for the transactions disclosed in note 23(b) to
the financial statements, no transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance subsisted during or at the end of
the year in which the Director or an entity connected with
the Director is or was materially interested, either directly or
indirectly.

FIVEYEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 136
of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association and there was no restriction against
such rights under the laws of Hong Kong, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to its existing shareholders.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No substantial contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group were entered into or existed during
the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transaction entered into by the
Group on 9 May 2014, which constitutes connected
transaction under the Listing Rules, is disclosed in note 23(b)
to the financial statements. Details of which please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 12 May 2014.

Significant related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2016, which
do not constitute connected transactions under the Listing
Rules are disclosed in note 23(a) to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, there is no related party
transaction set out in note 23 to the financial statements fall
into the category of connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules. The
Company has complied with the requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect to the
connected transaction.
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
which covers all of the Group’s employees. Particulars of
these retirement schemes are set out in note 17 to the
financial statements.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and considers all the Independent Non-Executive Directors
to be independent.

AUDITORS

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited as auditors
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. There has been no change in the auditors
of the Company in the preceding three years.

By order of the Board

Wong, Wilson Kin Lae
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2017
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The Company puts great emphasis on corporate
governance by reviewing and strengthening corporate
governance measures from time to time. The board of the
Company believes that shareholders can derive maximum
benefits from good corporate governance.

Throughout the year, the Company was in compliance with
the Code of Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, with
an exception of deviations from code provision A.4.1 of the
CG Code in respect of the service term of independent non-
executive directors.

Under code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive
directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
should be appointed for a specific term and subject to
retirement by rotation.

None of the existing non-executive Directors (including
the independent non-executive Directors) is appointed
for a specific term. This constitutes a deviation from code
provision A.4.1 of the CG Code. However, all non-executive
Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors)
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with
the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association.
Besides, the Company has also received the annual
confirmation of independence from each independent non-
executive director and the Board believes that independent
non-executive Directors continue to be independent. As
such, the Company considers that sufficient measures have
been taken to ensure that the standard of the Company’s
corporate governance practices is not lower than those
required in the CG Code.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors
and established written guidelines no less exacting than the
Model Code for senior management and specified persons
who are likely to possess inside information in relation to the
Group.

Having made specific enquiry, all the directors confirmed that
they had complied with the required standards as set out in
the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2016.
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GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Company’s corporate governance structure includes
the Board and three committees under the Board, namely
audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee. The Board stipulates the terms of reference for
all committees in writing and specifies clearly the power and
responsibilities of the committees.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises four executive Directors, three non-
executive Directors, and four independent non-executive
Directors. Each of the non-executive Directors (including
the independent non-executive Directors) is appointed for
an unspecified term. Please refer to page 21 of this annual
report for composition of the Board.

All independent non-executive Directors have complied with
the requirements of the Listing Rules and have submitted to
the Company annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed
their independence and confirms that all independent non-
executive Directors are independent parties as defined in the
Listing Rules. Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung was appointed
on 16 March 1988, Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da was appointed
on 12 December 1994 and Mr. Ng Yiu Ming was appointed
on 2 July 2004 and Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun was
appointed on 1 January 2013. The appointment of Directors
is not fixed for a specified term, but they are subject to the
retirement and re-election requirements at every annual
general meeting pursuant to the Articles of Association.

The family relationship among the Directors is summarized
as follows:

Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae is the father of Mr. Wong,
Raymond Man Hin and uncle of Mr. Wong, John Ying Man
and Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit.

Mr. Wong, John Ying Man and Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit are
brothers and they are cousins of Mr. Wong, Raymond Man
Hin.

The Directors have conducted a review of the effectiveness

of the system of internal control of the Company and its
subsidiaries.
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The Board convenes at least four regular meetings each
year, and will convene further meetings when necessary.
When a regular Board meeting is convened, the Board
documents will be sent to the Directors for review before
the meeting pursuant to the Listing Rules and the CG Code
so that the Directors can keep abreast of the information
to perform their duties and responsibilities. The Board
convened 5 meetings in 2016.
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The attendance of directors is as follows: EFHEBREOT :
Attendance Attendance
No. of Board No. of general
meetings attended/ meetings attended/
No. of Board No. of general
meetings held during meetings held during
term of service Attendance term of service Attendance
Director Name HEESS2Z Y/ Rate HERRASRE,/ Rate
EEL AHNESSERRY HEE EHRRRAERE HEE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Wong, WilsonKinLae ~ =%F|% 4%

(Chairman) () 5/5 100% il 100%
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man HRGSE 1/5 20% 0/1 0%
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin - & XL 4 5/5 100% 1/1 100%
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing RRELE 5/5 100% 11 100%
Non-Executive Directors HHNTEE
Ms Li, Yinghong TR+ 4/5 80% 11 100%
Mr. Xiong Zhengfeng BRIFIE LA 2/5 40% 0/1 0%
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit HRERE 4/5 80% il 100%
Independent Non-Executive B FFH7EF

Directors
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung 2B 4 5/5 100% il 100%
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BLERAE 4/5 80% 11 100%
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming mRRxE 5/5 100% 11 100%
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun ~ ZEEL4E 5/5 100% 1/1 100%
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The remuneration of Directors is determined with reference
to their functions and responsibilities in the Company,
the performance of the Company and the current
market conditions. No Director is allowed to participate
in determining his own remuneration. The remuneration
received by Directors from the Company during the
year is set out in Note 7 of the financial statement. The
Board has set up an independent professional consulting
procedure and upon reasonable request, Directors are able
to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expenses.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the chairman also held
meeting with independent non-executive Directors without
presence of executive Directors during the year.

All the Directors have participated in continuous professional
development, e.g. updated Listing Rules training, to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills provided by
the Group. The Company maintained the training records
received by each of the Directors in FY2016.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises four independent non-
executive Directors with extensive experience in accounting
or legal matters. The audit committee was established with
specific written terms of reference, mainly responsible for
reviewing the financial statements and annual and interim
reports and accounts of the Company, submitting relevant
reports and recommendations to the Board, reviewing
the Company’s financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems and making recommendations on
the appointment and remuneration of the auditors of the
Company and any matters related to the termination of
appointment. Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung is chairman of
the audit committee and is responsible for reporting the
results and recommendations of the audit committee to the
Board after each meeting.
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In 2016, the audit committee convened 2 meetings.
Members of the audit committee and their attendance are
as follows:
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Attendance

No. of meetings
attended/

No. of meetings

held during the year Attendance
Member Name HELESERE Rate
REEH FHREB X HfE &
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung RIS (/) 2/2 100%

(Chairman)

Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BICELAE 2/2 100%
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming (hiBER LA 2/2 100%
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun BEERE 2/2 100%

Tasks undertaken by the audit committee during the year
included reviewing the 2015 audited financial statements
and the annual results announcement, reviewing the interim
report for the six months ended 30 June 2016 and the
interim results announcement, considering the accounting
standards adopted, reviewing the explanatory letter about
audit submitted by the auditors to the management and
the response of the management, the basis of opinion and
qualified opinion (if any) made by the auditors in their report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk
management and internal control system to manage risks
on an ongoing basis to reasonably safeguard the interests
of the Company’s shareholders and the Group’s assets.
In addition, there is regular dialogue with the Group’s
internal and external auditors so that both are aware of the
significant factors which may affect their respective scope of
work.

The Board has approved an “Inside Information Policy” in
May 2013 with the aim to set out guidelines to the directors,
officers and all relevant employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries to ensure Inside Information of the Company is
to be disseminated to the public in equal and timely manner
in accordance with the applicable laws and regulations. The
term “relevant employee” refers to employee of the Group,
because of his/her office or employment, who is likely to be
in possession of the unpublished Inside Information.
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The Group's risk management includes regular identification
and review of business risks and control measures to
mitigate such risks. The Group internal control system
comprises of an established organizational structure as
well as comprehensive policies and standards. Area of
responsibilities of each business and functional unit is clearly
defined to ensure effective check and balance. Procedures
have been designed to safeguard assets from unauthorized
use or disposition, and to ensure that proper accounting
records are maintained and financial information used
internally and for publication is reliable. The internal control
procedures provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material errors, losses and fraud; but deem
sufficient to ensure full compliance with applicable laws and
regulations.

The audit committee and the Board carry out an
overview every six months on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system of the Group.
The review covers all material controls, including financial,
operational and risk controls. No material risk management
and internal control aspects of any significant discrepancies
were discovered during the review. Both the audit committee
and the Board expressed satisfaction over the effectiveness
and adequacy of both the internal control procedures and
risk management procedures for the year under review.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee comprises four independent
non-executive Directors and two executive Directors. The
remuneration committee was established with specific
written terms of reference, principally responsible for
reviewing and approving remuneration plans for directors
and senior management, determining the remuneration
package of executive directors and senior management,
including benefits, pension interests and the payment of
compensation. Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung is chairman
of the remuneration committee and is responsible for
reporting the meeting results and recommendations of the
remuneration committee to the Board after each meeting.
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In 2016, the remuneration committee convened 1 meeting. 720164 * HIFHZE G GRIT1ATH - FHEEEKE
Members of the remuneration committee and their KHFBEROT :
attendance are as follows:
Attendance
No. of meetings attended/
No. of meetings
held during the year Attendance
Member Name HEHESE IS Rate
REER FHAERRE HER
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung DR E (/) 1/1 100%
(Chairman)
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da WCESAE 1/1 100%
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming hIRRA A 1/1 100%
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun EEERE 1/1 100%
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin EXAEAE 1/1 100%

Tasks undertaken by the remuneration committee
during the year included reviewing the remuneration
structure, remuneration policy and bonus system of the
Group, assessing performance of Executive Directors,
considering the salary adjustment for the year and making
recommendations to the Board. The remuneration
committee also ensures that no Director or senior
management member determines his own remuneration.

The remuneration policy of the Group is to determine the
remuneration of executive Directors and senior management
based on their responsibilities, qualifications and working
performance. No Director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration. The Company
has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to the
Directors, employees and other eligible participants. Details
of the share option scheme are set out in note 19 to the
financial statement.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee comprise four independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming (Chairman),
Mr. Leung. Michael Kai Hung, Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da and
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun. The nomination committee is
to deal with the appointment, re-election and retirement of
Directors.
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The nomination committee consider that in terms of
professional experience, skill and knowledge and the
structure, size and composition of the Board, the present
members of the Board of the Company are generally in
line with the diversity policy of the Company concerning
board members, meeting the present situation and future
development plan of the Company.

In 2016, the nomination committee convened 1 meeting.
Members of the nomination committee and their attendance
are as follows:

?m%éi’.;fﬂdﬁ’%ﬁ AIEATMESZKE  REXLR &K

EELAMBLREZTG2RE  ABRERSZ I EEE - X
ﬁ ARAEZZTERE - FEARFIRMR I ARER
HE -

R2016%F  RAZBEBETIRNEH RHEZBEEKE
REEERIT

Attendance
No. of meetings attended/
No. of meetings

held during the year Attendance
Member Name HEHESERE Rate
REER FHAERRE HE=R
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming (Chairman) (HRRA S (F/F) 1/1 100%
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung PRI 1/1 100%
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BlERE 1/1 100%
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun BEETE 1/1 100%
ROLES OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT EEEREEENAG
The Board is principally responsible for establishing the Z=FE®FZEBERVAEEMERERN - T BEEREB
development direction of the Group, formulating targets and ~ #E&HE - FEHERBE R FE - BESRERE E’Jﬁfﬁ

business development plans, approving major agreements
and matters, and monitoring the performances of senior
management. It is also responsible for corporate governance
with a view to enhance shareholders’ value. Led by the
three general managers, the management is responsible
for implementing the strategies and plans developed by the
Board.

The Company has developed a schedule of matters
reserved to the Board for decisions and has separately
identified those functions reserved to the Board. The Board
will review those arrangements on a regular basis to ensure
that the arrangements meet the needs of the Company.
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ROLES AND DUTIES OF CHAIRMAN AND
GENERAL MANAGER

The chairman and the general manager (equivalent to
chief executive officer) have different roles. The chairman is
responsible for the operation of the Board and the general
managers are responsible for managing the operations
of the Group. Their functions have been clearly divided to
ensure a balanced distribution of power and no authority will
concentrate on a single individual.

Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, the chairman of the Board, is
principally responsible for leading the Board and ensures
the Board to act in the best interests of the Company. The
chairman ensures that the Board to operate effectively
and perform its proper duties and discuss all important
and proper matters in a timely manner. The chairman is
responsible for convening Board meetings, consulting,
determining and approving the agenda of each Board
meeting, and ensuring that Directors are provided sufficient
information on current matters in a timely manner. The
chairman oversees the structure, number of members and
composition of the Board and makes recommendations
to the Board and the relevant committees on any intended
changes. The chairman is also responsible for ensuring
that the Company formulates good corporate governance
practice and procedure.

Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin, the deputy executive
chairman, an executive Director and a general manager,
is principally responsible for the daily operation and
management of the Group’s overall operations and
implementing the Board’s operating strategy and policy
and delegating tasks to all departments for implementation
so as to realize the Board’s objectives and decisions. In
addition, he is also responsible for the Group’s financial
reporting, internal control, material procurement and control,
logistics, customs, taxes and legal matters and compliance,
coordinating close cooperation among all departments,
uniting efforts of staff and encouraging the initiative of staff
so as to ensure smooth and effective operation of the
Company’s operations and systems.
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Mr. Wong, John Ying Man, an executive Director and a
general manager, is principally responsible for the daily
operation and management of the Group’s overall operations
and implementing the Board’s operating strategy and policy
and delegating tasks to all departments for implementation
so as to realize the Board’s objectives and decisions. In
addition, he is also responsible for research & development,
production, quality assurance and new product innovations,
coordinating close cooperation among all departments,
uniting efforts of staff and encouraging the initiative of staff
so as to ensure smooth and effective operation of the
Company’s operations and systems.

Mr. Mok, Kin Hing, an executive Director and a general
manager, is principally responsible for the daily operation
and management of the Group’s overall operations and
implementing the Board’s operating strategy and policy and
delegating tasks to all departments for implementation so as
to realize the Board’s objectives and decisions. In addition,
he is also responsible for supervising all personnel issues
at our Nansha production facilities, all capital equipments
installation and disposal, and overseeing all employee
champions programs to optimize costs and make sure our
facilities are in full compliance with local, international and
environment laws and standards.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Article 95 of the Articles of Association, the
Board is entitled to appoint any person as Director from
time to time or at any time to fill a casual vacancy or add a
new member to the Board. For nomination, the nominee’s
qualifications, capabilities and potential to make contribution
to the Company shall be taken into consideration by the
nomination committee.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility in preparing
the financial statements of the Group.

The finance department of the Company is managed by
a qualified staff and supervised by executive Director and
general manager, Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin, who is
a U.S. certified public accountant. With the assistance
of the finance department, the Board will ensure that
the preparation of the financial statements of the Group
complies with relevant regulations and applicable accounting
standards.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration in respect of audit and non-audit services
(including review of interim financial information and tax
services) for the year ended 31 December 2016 provided
by Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited and its affiliate were
approximately HK$692,000, and HK$291,000 respectively.

The statement of reporting responsibility issued by Baker
Tilly Hong Kong Limited, the auditor of the Company, in
respect of the financial statements of the Group is set out in
the independent auditor’s report on pages 50 to 58.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has maintained communication with its
shareholders through the annual general meeting or other
general meetings and encourages them to participate in
general meetings. Registered shareholders of the Company
receive notices of general meetings by post. The notice
of general meeting contains the agenda, the proposed
resolutions and the voting form. All shareholders of the
Company are entitled to attend the annual general meeting
and special general meetings of the Company. Shareholders
who are unable to attend the general meeting can fill in the
proxy form attached with the notice of general meeting and
return the same to the share registrar and transfer office of
the Company so as to appoint their representatives or the
chairman of the meeting as their proxies.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

Right to convene an extraordinary general
meeting

Pursuant to Article 68 of the Articles of Association, an
extraordinary general meeting shall be convened by the
Directors on requisition as provided by the Companies
Ordinance or by the requisitionist. The Directors are required
to call a general meeting if the Company has received
requests from shareholders of the Company representing
at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the shareholders
having a right to vote at general meetings.
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Right to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All
enquiries can be in writing and sent for the attention of the
Board, in one of the following ways:

1. By Post Raymond Industrial Limited
Rooms 1801-1813, 18th floor,
Grandtech Centre,

8 On Ping Street,

Shatin, New Territories

2. By facsimile  (852) 2341 8669

3. By email ril@rilhk.com

Procedures to put forward proposals at general
meetings

Shareholders who would like to put forward proposals at a
general meeting shall follow the procedures below.

Shareholders of the Company representing at least 2.5%
of the total voting rights of all the shareholders who have a
relevant right to vote or at least 50 shareholders who have a
relevant right to vote may request the Company to:

i) give notice of a resolution that may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at the annual
general meeting of the Company; or

ii) circulate a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to a matter mentioned in a proposed
resolution to be dealt with at a general meeting or
other business to be dealt with at the meeting;

to each shareholder of the Company entitled to receive
notice of the meeting.
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A request to give notice of a resolution must be received by
the Company not later than (i) 6 weeks before the annual
general meeting to which the request relates; or (i) if later,
the time at which notice is given of that meeting. A request
to circulate shareholders’ statement must be received by
the Company at least 7 days before the meeting to which it
relates. Such request may be sent to the Company in hard
copy form or in electronic form.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lo, Wai Keung Eric (“Mr. Lo”) has been appointed as
the company secretary of the Company since 24 January
2014. Mr. Lo is responsible for ensuring that the Board
is fully appraised of the relevant corporate governance
developments relating to the Group and facilitating the
professional development of the directors.

Mr. Lo has received no less than 15 hours relevant
professional training during FY 2016.
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‘ Independent Auditor’s Report

BYZHBERE

=

BAKER TILLY
HONG KONG [ KB it

Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Raymond Industrial Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Raymond Industrial Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 59 to
135, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2016 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements” section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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The Key Audit Matter

RRETEE

Independent Auditor’s Report
BB R &

How the matter was addressed in our audit

R ET P MEEEREEE

Income tax provision relating to a transfer pricing audit

FHREREREENHMEHRE

Refer to Note 2(n), 6, 12 and 27(c) of the audited consolidated financial statements

BRI ECA R BEHENL20N) - 6 - 12K 27(C)

In 2013, the tax authorities in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) initiated a transfer-pricing audit on a
subsidiary of the Company in the PRC in respect of the
years ended 31 December 2002 to 2011. The Group
has been in discussions with the PRC tax authorities
with a view to conclude the transfer-pricing audit. To
date no determination has been made by the PRC
tax authorities. During the years ended 31 December
2013, 2014, 2015 and 2016, with consideration of
recent negotiations between the officials of Nansha tax
bureau, the Group has made a provision of RMB94,000,
RMB5,790,000, RMB4,119,000 and RMB1,000,000
(equivalent to HK$120,000, HK$7,331,000, HK$4,985,000
and HK$1,173,000) respectively against the potential
tax exposures estimated by the management. At 31
December 2016, the cumulative provisions made against
the potential tax adjustment relating to the transfer-
pricing audit amounted to RMB11,003,000 (equivalent
to HK$13,609,000). Of this, in 2014, the Group paid
RMB3,000,000 (equivalent to HK$3,799,000) to the tax
authorities. Accordingly, the tax payable of RMB8,003,000
(equivalent to HK$8,615,000) is included in “Tax payable”
in the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2016.

20134 - HrEE AR AFIE ([ # B ) B Pt 80 2002
FE01M1F12A3BILEFEH BERR—KPEM
BRI REEREREE - S8 —FEHPBENAE
BREZESHY ZS5FERMNEEER  BE
20134 ~ 2014 - 20164F K2016F 128310 Ik
B ZRIOHRERMNTELPBERNEBHENEREE
e EXEEMEEEMTOEERIBERRIELRE
ARl A AR 4,000 « AR 5,790,0007T + AR
4,119,000 7t &2 A R # 1,000,000 7t (AH& 7 7% 120,000
7T 8 ®7,331,0007T B #4,985,0007T K B K
1,173,0007T) » A2016F 12 A31 A B AR EREZE
BEEHEENBSHAEEL B E R AR 11,003,0007T
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& AR 2 4 A R 3,000,000 7T (F8 & 7474 3,799,000
JL) e At R2016F 128318 BNHBEBARE
8,008,000 7t (A8E &% 8,615,000 7T ) 5 AR & B #5+ik
RERFH) [ERFIE] -

Our audit procedures in this area included:

BAEL T M EIEF B

o obtaining and reviewing the latest correspondence
between the subsidiary and the tax authorities to
establish the status of the transfer-pricing audit;
BRI BT A R AT 2 MeV&FmE - AT
REREEESTHEHEM

° assessing the adequacy of the income tax provision
with reference to the tax reports prepared by the
Group’s independent tax specialist;

2% BEEBUNBERERAOTBHERE
FISBiBERERR

EiC

° re-calculating the income tax provision, including
any interest and penalty charges;
BT EMEREE  BEEARNERERZ L

° inspecting the official instalment payment notice and
bank advices for payments made; and
BEEAN D BMNFERMREBNRARITEN
=

° assessing the sufficiency and adequacy of the
disclosures about taxation matters in accordance
with HKAS 12 “Income taxes” and HKAS 8
“Accounting policies, changes in accounting
estimates and errors”.
EREBGEAE 125 [FEH ] RESGFE
RIZE85E [&aTEGR - SrthatEE RER] - 7Hh
EATBEENERRES RO R -
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How the matter was addressed in our audit
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Impairment of trade receivables

W E 2 R

Refer to Note 2(g)(i) and 14 of the audited consolidated financial statements

BRI E A S EHENGL2(0)0) K 14

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had significant trade
receivables of HK$215,973,619. No impairment has been
recognised during the year.

R20165F12A31H - ESEEAEREKEZHEFE
¥ 215,973,619 7T ° FAI MIERRE °

The management has to apply judgement to assess the
level of provisions required to adjust the value of trade
receivable to their recoverable amounts. The Group’s credit
risk policy requires analysis of individual receivable account
balances, taking into account receivables that are past due
for more than 1 year.

FEEBREKRT - UBEKREZERNEBERARS
Huo &5 EREAELAE - EXEEER
RIBER 2 5K 0 AT E 51 FE WK BR SR BARE - 30 R B R A 1
FEREUARTK -

The level of judgement involved in determining whether
a provision should be recognised and how it should be
measured, coupled with the fact that provision movements
impact earnings, results in this being one of the key
judgmental areas that our audit concentrated on.

BB R VR B B R ANl 51 2 P e B #I T A2
B BIN-BEEHTERN  SEXAKRMOEHN
) —(ERASE 2 TR -

Our audit procedures in this area included:

HBAELE T ENEEF B

o assessing the robustness of the management
impairment evaluation process and the adequacy of
the impairment of trade receivables;

M EREREN G EERE  UREKRES
RROEBBELARR

o assessing the appropriateness of the Group’s
provisioning policy, with reference to the ageing
of the customer balances, economic conditions,
concentration of counterparty risk and the past
history of debt recovery; and
2EZPESGIERR - KFRR - HFHERES
MBEEBWEES - b EEEEEBER &

° reviewing subsequent settlement records and
challenging the management about their reasons
for not considering provisions against any unsettled
past-due balances.

FERREEELCS SR T ARE BB AR
EH BB EEE  TRRE -

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. Annual Report 2016




The Key Audit Matter
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRETSER

Valuation of inventories

FEME

BENE P OAEEERSEE

Refer to Note 2(h) and 13 of the audited consolidated financial statements

FE R R AR B RN 2(h) & 13

The Group operates in an industry in which developments
in electrical home appliances may result in inventories
becoming slow moving or obsolete. Its customers may
modify their products orders or shift their orders to other
manufacturers which would result in changes in product
and stock lines. These factors, in turn, may mean that
relevant inventory cannot be sold or sales prices are
discounted to less than the inventory carrying value.

MR BEREQLMETE  XASRNERARESHE
BERBSBE - TP RIENEREXKTEEHEEE
Hih S - EREMEMMFEKRTEIL - MzER
RAREERE  HAFEEALHE  HEBHNEER
FEERmE -

The value of inventory as at 31 December 2016 was
HK$116,010,706 which is significant for the consolidated
statement of financial position. Further, a write-down
of inventories and reversal of previous write-downs of
inventories totaling HK$1,006,738 and HK$1,722,175
respectively were recognised during the year ended 31
December 2016.

7201612 B 31 HHF EEERE¥ 116,010,706 7T
HZaMBIRAEXTM S @B|EK « I BE20165F
12 AB31 BILFE - BHERFEMRE 1,006,738 7T K%
BoFERESE1,7221757T ¢

Our audit procedures in this area included:

AL I EEF BRI

° assessing the appropriateness of the Group’s
methodology for determining its inventory provision
in the light of our understanding of the business and
the industry, including our professional judgement
of the age and nature of inventory, past usage and
new product launches;
ERBMEEBRITENTR(BEAMNEFER
BREMENFEAE  BERERFEMEM)
i EREEETEERENHEESHEE

o assessing the accuracy of inventory provisions by
examining the history or outcome of reversal of
previously recorded provisions;

BREFAMARBRNELSBOER  TEFEE
ER RN
° testing the carrying value of inventory by comparing

the carrying values to latest sales invoices for a
representative sample of items to assess whether
those items were held at the lower of cost or net
realisable value; and

RAAFEREE BAERKENFEROEES
FHERELER  FEZEFTERGIRAARE ]
FFEFHREEAR &

o assessing the adequacy of the disclosures in
respect of management’s judgements used in
determining the carrying value of inventory.
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BRERTAS -

ZE-RFER NEREXBRAF

53




Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZEE®E

The Key Audit Matter

RRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

R ET P MEEEREEE

54

Revenue recognition

LON

Refer to Note 2(p) and 3 of the audited consolidated financial statements

BRI E A EHEN L 20) R 3

There is a risk that transactions completed just before and
just after the year end could be incorrectly recorded due to
a high volume of transactions close to the year-end date.
MBI ERETRER S » FRAIRFRETKOHR
SR AR IERE

The Group also has a number of customers who have a
variety of shipping terms which means that the transfer
of risks and rewards occurred on different timing bases
(such as on dispatch, on receipt at port of destination or on
receipt by customer). This means that there is an increased
risk that revenue may not be recognised in the correct
period for sales occurring near to the year end.
ERENEZEMNERRTANER EEREMESE
B /B K [0 R RS B B P EDE N [R] (AN B B R ~ B #93
BOWESEPKER) - EERE - MEAFEREEN
HEMS + WA BERN EEEARERMERR B FTIgm o

Our audit procedures in this area included:

BAELE AN EEF B

o selecting representative samples of transactions
recorded before and after year end for substantive
testing by reference to the trigger event for revenue,
when contractually the customer takes on the risks
and rewards of ownership, and tracing back to third
party carrier documentation and customers invoices
and/or agreements;
BENFRIZFESHNAGRRENT FERNET
BEMAR 2R ABESEH  BEFEAOLE
BEAENER MEHRNERE  WEPEZEE=H
BREXHREFPERR SiE

° examining the numeric sequence of goods delivery
notes before and after year end and investigating
any apparent abnormalities; and
BMEFRAENEREEERTIET - AEEMA
HEE &

° conducting substantive analytical procedures on
the pattern of sales just before and just after year
end, including a comparison with the pattern in
prior years and corroborating the result of enquiries
with management about any unusual fluctuations in
sales.

HERFENHEABETEEES RS - B85
HRTEFENABLE  HEAEFNHEEREE
EHERMNEEERE -
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Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises chairman’s statement, five years
financial summary and management discussion and analysis
included in the annual report (but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon), which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, and the corporate information, report of the directors,
corporate governance report and biographical details of
directors and senior management, which is expected to be
made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit,
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other
information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of directors and those charged
with governance for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Tong Wai Hang.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28 March 2017

Tong Wai Hang
Practising Certificate Number PO6231
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss ‘

(For the year ended 31 December 2016)

GREZR

(BZE 20164 12 531 HIFFE)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(B REN)
2016 2015
Note HK$ HK$
Mt it ks

Revenue WA 3 1,019,441,813 988,449,114
Cost of sales SHEE RN (863,703,905) (886,596,543)
Gross profit EF 155,737,908 101,852,571
Other revenue E A A 4 1,220,115 2,370,996
Other net income/(loss) E RIS (E518) 4 633,126 (144,321)
Net foreign exchange gain: HNIE H RIS

reclassified from equity [{OYE=INETF =S

upon deregistration of iz EMEE

a subsidiary - 17,884,012
Selling expenses HEER (11,846,417) (14,378,536)
General and administrative — R RITEE

expenses (73,040,733) (62,839,383)
Profit before taxation R A% F 5 72,703,999 44,745,339
Income tax Frig 6 (21,692,855) (8,416,870)
Profit for the year and AATBRREN

attributable to equity REERR

shareholders

of the Company 51,011,144 36,328,469
Earnings per share BRER 9
Basic, HK cents A - B 10.66 7.65
Diluted, HK cents - B 10.54 7.53

Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in

note 20(b).

The notes on pages 66 to 135 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

(For the year ended 31 December 2016)

SEEBENAEMZERER

(BtZ 2016 F 12 H 31 HIFF/Z)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B HEN)

2016 2015
HK$ HK$
pited Vokio
Profit for the year FEER 51,011,144 36,328,469
Other comprehensive loss for FEHMEEES :
the year
ltem that may be reclassified ZIBESRERENGE
subsequently to profit or loss: HIEE -
— Exchange differences on —- BEIRHINEFS B TS Rk
translation of financial EEMENZRE -
statements of foreign mHIE 2 FE
operations, net of nil tax (16,808,122) (18,561,940)
— Exchange reserve reclassified - AMB ARG
to profit or loss upon REREEENRES
deregistration of a subsidiary, Bl - BRIEZFE
net of nil tax - (17,884,012)
(16,808,122) (36,445,952)
Total comprehensive income/ RATBRREMFEZ
(loss) for the year and 2mEkE(E8) 85
attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company 34,203,022 (117,483)

The notes on pages 66 to 135 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

(At 31 December 2016)

HEMBRR R
(2016 E 12 31 HAZE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

&

(B BEEN)
2016 2015
Note HK$ HKS
P 5T et ks
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BEMEE 11 145,330,733 165,693,369
Interests in leasehold land held for BIESCEHEREE A
own use under operating leases 2 tihiEes 11 7,250,885 8,141,666
Deferred tax assets EETIBE = 12(b) 4,910,372 8,345,504
157,491,990 182,180,539
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 13 116,010,706 112,335,440
Trade and other receivables E 5 M E M EIERIA 14 235,024,426 208,005,264
Tax recoverable AR EFIR 12(a) 541,174 1,549,617
Cash and cash equivalents Re kR EHEEE 15 251,634,475 244,472,180
603,210,781 566,362,501
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables g 5 RHEMERIRIE 16 173,426,655 173,683,542
Dividends payable FERTRR B, 336,247 203,787
Tax payable JERI BB 12(a) 14,742,477 10,095,169
188,505,379 183,982,498
Net current assets REEETFE 414,705,402 382,380,003
Total assets less current liabilities #EEERABHERE 572,197,392 564,560,542
Non-current liabilities FkRBERE
Deferred tax liabilities EEIBEE 12(b) 308,070 167,906
NET ASSETS BEEFE 571,889,322 564,392,636
CAPITAL AND RESERVES ERR#HE
Share capital &N 20(a) 448,167,336 445,820,688
Other reserves HAn 123,721,986 118,571,948
TOTAL EQUITY R 571,889,322 564,392,636

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors

on 28 March 2017.

Wilson Wong Kin Lae

2017 3 A28 HEE E S b MR T3 -

Raymond Wong Man Hin

A BEXE

Director Director

EE BEF

The notes on pages 66 to 135 form part of the consolidated ~ N FE 66 BEEF 135 8 M BAEKIL FLRE M BHRE 2
financial statements. —&B15 o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

(For the year ended 31 December 2016)

FEEREHR
(BtZ 2016 F 12 A4 31 HIFF/E)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB REN)
PRC
Share  Exchange Capital Retained statutory Total
capital reserve reserve earnings reserve equity
R& ENRE ERGE RREN DEEERE Bt
Note HKS HKS HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Mgk it it it ot ot ot
At 1 January 2015 R2015%1 A1 B&t 438,527,402 85,373,289 4,619,609 30,839,597 36,888,573 596,248,470
Changes in equity for 2015: 2015 2 #3828 :
Profit for the year RERRA - - - 36,328,469 - 36,328,469
Exchange differences on BERNERNIBRREL
translation of financial MEXZHS
statements of foreign operations - (18,561,940) - - - (18,561,940)
Exchange reserve reclassified ANBAREER S
to profit or loss upon fEENREERERE: -
deregistration of a subsidlary, BiERE
net of ni tax - (17,884012) - - - (17,884012)
Total comprehensive loss FEREEEES - (36445,952) - 36,328,469 - (117,489)
Appropriation to PRC HEETE RERR
statutory reserve - - - (834,800) 834,800 -
Release of PRC statutory NG
reserve upon deregistration ETEREEY
of a subsidiary - - - 2,913,791 (2,913,791) -
Dividends approved in respect of ~ BERR &
— current year X3 20(0)() - - - (9,546,845) - (9,546,845)
— previous year -fF 20(0)(i) - - - (28,555,330) - (28555,330)
Shares issued under share BRI ERERY
option scheme
- gross proceeds -EhE 20()(i) 6,363,830 - - - - 6363830
~transfer from capital reserve - EAREEY 929,456 - (929,456) - - -
Cancellation of share options HEERE - - (201,986) 201,986 - -
7293286 (36,445,952 (1,131,442 507,265 (2,078,991)  (31,855,834)
At 31 December 2015 R20155 12 A 31 B4 445,820,688 48,927,337 3,488,167 31,346,862 34,809,582 564,392,636
RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. Annual Report 2016



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 4@
(For the year ended 31 December 2016)
GEEREERX
(BZE 20164 12 531 HIFFE)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(B REN)
PRC
Share  Exchange Capital Retained statutory Total
capital reserve reserve earnings reserve equity
R& ENRE EAfE BERA TELERE Bt
Note HKS HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
MizE B B B B B B

At 1 January 2016 R2016F1 A1 BER 445,820,688 48,927,337 3,488,167 31,346,862 34,809,582 564,392,636
Changes in equity for 2016: 2016 2 EXEZH
Profit for the year KEERH - - - 51,011,144 - 51,011,144
Exchange differences on BERNERNIBRREL

translation of financial MR ZE

statements of foreign operations - (16,808,122) - - - (16,808,122)
Total comprehensive income FERXABRLER - (16,808,122 - 51,011,144 - 34,203,022
Appropriation to PRC HEETE RER

statutory reserve - - - (434,330) 434,330 -
Dividends approved in PERS

respect of
— current year 3 20(0)() - - - (9,597,446) - (9,597,446
— previous year -fF 20(0)(i) - - - (19,149,690) - (19,149,690)
Shares issued under share BRI ERERD

option scheme
- gross proceeds -EE 20(a)(i) 2,040,800 - - - - 2,040,800
~transfer from capital reserve - EAREEY 305,848 - (305,348) - - -
Cancellation of share options HBERE - - (151,944) 151,944 - -

2,346,648  (16,808,122) (457,792) 21,981,622 434,330 7,496,686

At 31 December 2016 2016 F 12 A 31 HE# 448,167,336 32,119,215 3,030,375 53,328,484 35,243,912 571,889,322
The notes on pages 66 to 135 form part of the consolidated ~ FRFE 66 EEF 135 B Mz AAEK L FLHREMBHRE 2
financial statements. —&B15 o
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64 RAYMOND Industrial Ltd.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(For the year ended 31 December 2016)

GERERER
(BtZ 2016 F 12 A4 31 HIFF/E)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(VBB REM)

2016 2015
Note HK$ HK$
B pited Vokio
Operating activities ReETE
Profit before taxation BRA A& A 72,703,999 44,745,339
Adjustments for: FHEE
— Amortisation of interests in - BHRIBEGEEE
leasehold land held for own BIEERz LR
use under operating leases 5(b) 393,233 399,635
— Depreciation -E 5(b) 33,469,391 34,754,459
— Foreign exchange gain, net - B F (6,350,186) (18,856,945)
— Interest income - R EWA 4 (1,220,115) (2,370,996)
— Net loss on disposal of - HEWME - BERE&ME
property, plant and equipment 2 FEE 4 088,784 3,600,324
— Reversal of overprovision of -ANBARGXEDERS
unused staff welfare fund upon BBz KRB TER
deregistration of a subsidiary 4 - (1,319,946)
— (Reversal of write-down)/ - (EVE3REE ), ThEE
write-down of inventories, net FEFE (715,437) 4,166,694
Operating profit before changes EEESRBAIRKE ST
in working capital 99,269,669 65,118,564
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (#m) RmAFEE (2,959,829) 29,569,918
(Increase)/decrease in trade and (&) RMIEBESH R
other receivables H e Y iR 18 (27,019,162) 23,490,976
Decrease in trade and other payables 8/ 8 5 & H fth FE (T BRIE (256,887) (24,427,320)
Cash generated from operations E&ELCHE 69,033,791 93,752,138
Tax paid: FRIEZ T -
- Hong Kong Profits Tax paid - FBEBNEH L (1,133,050) (6,524,683)
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid - PRI EMEH X (10,838,136) (2,093,017)
Net cash generated from RETHEECESFE
operating activities 57,062,605 85,134,438
Investing activities REETH
Payment for the purchase of B EME - WEREE
property, plant and equipment (22,728,055) (18,788,932)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BEL&E
plant and equipment FT{SRIE 357,132 325,782
Interest received F B HA 1,220,115 2,370,996
Net cash used in investing RETHIH R SFE

activities

(21,150,808)

(16,092,154)

Annual Report 2016




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows ‘

(For the year ended 31 December 2016)

SERERER
(BZE 20164 12 531 HIFFE)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(UBEREN)
2016 2015
Note HK$ HK$
B bt Nokecs
Financing activities RMEEE
Proceeds from shares issued BATHR AR (D 2 Wax
under share option scheme 20(a)(ii) 2,040,800 6,363,830
Dividends paid SRR (28,614,676) (38,053,561)
Net cash used in financing METETHZ
activities REFEE (26,573,876) (31,689,731)
Increase in cash and ENEeRREEEER
cash equivalents 9,337,921 37,352,553
Cash and cash equivalents R1A1HZRER
at 1 January Re%EER 244,472,180 213,008,820
Effect of foreign exchange HEERSE 2 E
rate changes (2,175,626) (5,889,193)
Cash and cash equivalents R12A31BBEER
at 31 December HEeEEER 15 251,634,475 244,472,180

The notes on pages 66 to 135 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.
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66 RAYMOND Industrial Ltd.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB BEMN)

I COMPANY INFORMATION

Raymond Industrial Limited (the “Company”) is a company
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its
registered office and principal place of business at Rooms
1801 - 1813, 18th Floor, Grandtech Centre, 8 On Ping
Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements for year ended 31
December 2016 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”).

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“"HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong. These financial statements also comply with the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Rk B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(@) Statement of compliance (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 2(c) provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that are relevant to the Group for
the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.

A summary of significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set out below.

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

(BVBEREMN)
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68 RAYMOND Industrial Ltd.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB BEMN)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements (Continued)

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 27.

() Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group. None of these developments have had
a material effect on how the Group’s result and financial
position for the current or prior periods have been prepared
or presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (see note 29).

(d)  Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised profits
arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an

investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(g)(ii).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Rk B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

ltems of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 2(g)(ii)).

Property, plant and equipment

The cost of construction in progress includes the cost of
machinery, materials, construction expenditures and other
costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working
condition for its intended use.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, over their estimated useful lives at the following
annual rates:

Buildings held for own use which are
situated on leasehold land, where the
fair value of the building could be
measured separately from the fair value
of the leasehold land at the inception of
the lease (see note 2(f)(i))

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Motor vehicles

4.0% - 4.5% straight line

9.0% - 18.0% straight line

9.0% - 33.3% straight line

25.0% reducing balance
and 18.0% straight line

Construction in progress is not depreciated until it is
completed and ready for its intended use.

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.

(BVBEREMN)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB BEMN)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)  Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made
based on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal
form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases, except where the land held for own
use under an operating lease, the fair value of which cannot
be measured separately from the fair value of a building
situated thereon, is accounted for as being held under a
finance lease, unless the building is also clearly held under
an operating lease. For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first entered into by the
Group, or taken over from the previous lessee.

(ii) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term of 50 years. Impairment losses are recognised in
accordance with accounting policy set out in note 2(g)(ii).

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Rk B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(g0 Impairment of assets
(i) Impairment of trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the Group
about one or more of the following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor.

If such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined
and recognised. The impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these financial assets
share similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar
to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A
reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB BEMN)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(g) Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of trade and other receivables

(Continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised
in respect of trade debtors, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance account.
When the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off against trade
debtors directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.

(ii) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

- pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as
being held for own use under operating leases; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Rk B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(g) Impairment of assets (Continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit
to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
and then, to reduce the carrying amount of other assets in
the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or
value in use (if determinable).

- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals are recognised.
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74 RAYMOND Industrial Ltd.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB BEMN)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all cost of purchases, cost of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

()  Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 2(g)(i)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

()  Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 2(0)(), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Rk B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

()
(i)

Cash and cash equivalents

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Contributions to mandatory provident fund as required
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance and to retirement benefit schemes for the
employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss as incurred.

(i) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is

recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity (see note 2(m)).
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76 RAYMOND Industrial Ltd.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB BEMN)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme under which
the Group receives services or goods from its directors,
employees and other eligible persons as consideration for
share options of the Company. The fair value of the services
or goods received in exchange for the grant of the share
options is recognised as an expense. The total amount to
be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of
the share options, which is measured at grant date using
the Black Scholes model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. Where
the counterparties have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability that the options
will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that
is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to profit or loss for the year of the review, unless
the original expenses qualify for recognition as an asset,
with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that vest
(with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of the Company’s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in the capital
reserve until either the option is exercised which included in
the amount recognised in share capital for the shares issued
or the option expires (when it is released directly to retained
earnings).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Rk B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB BEMN)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)  Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Rk B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

(0)

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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80 RAYMOND Industrial Ltd.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB BEMN)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(P) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises which is taken to be the point in time
when the customer has accepted the goods and the related
risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts.

(i) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(@) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Rk B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(@)  Translation of foreign currencies

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or
loss on disposal is recognised.

(r)  Product development costs

Expenditure on development activities, whereby research
findings are applied to a plan or design for the production
of new or substantially improved products and processes,
is capitalised if the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient resources
and the intention to complete development. The expenditure
capitalised includes the costs of materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Development
expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period in
which it is incurred.

(s) Related parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control of the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).
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R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB BEMN)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (i).

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

(vii)  The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

(t)

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Segment reporting
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Rk B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)  Segment reporting (Continued)

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments
have similar economic characteristics and are similar in
respect of the nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of customers,
the methods used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

3 REVENUE

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and
sale of electrical home appliances.

(BVBEREMN)

2 FESTEE®)

RYBHREMS - BRIEAEED B IS G - D EE
BRUKEFHREERKRGEE - £EBEEE - &
FREBZER - BEDHEERKERRBZTIENRESE
RIFMEE T EAABLRIERIN - W FEERIEXR 2 & &0 B

HAaRBOMEER  RIZELED AR H -

3 WA

AEEEFBXRGRBERHERMER

Revenue represents the sales value of goods supplied to  WAREEMET P 2 HEE - IR - BERIGEH K
customers, net of discounts, returns and value added tax or ~ FEAFEER ©
other sales taxes.
4 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET 4 HiW AR Bz (BE)
INCOME/(LOSS)
2016 2015
HK$ HK$
ik S
Other revenue Hiug A
Bank interest income FRITHBHA 1,220,115 2,370,996
Other net income/(loss) HiEkE(EiE)
Gain on disposal of scrap materials HEREsYI S 865,266 890,733
Net exchange (loss)/gain FEH % (F518) e (917,668) 806,085
Net loss on disposal of LEME - BE &
property, plant and equipment HEFEBE (988,784) (3,600,324)
Sample sales income EL e 1,306,388 276,789
Subsidy income B 402,412 14,321
Reversal of overprovision of unused Loy =WNSIECEJEIE 5]
staff welfare fund upon SRR B IR
deregistration of a subsidiary - 1,319,946
Sundry (loss)/income Hith (&518) Wz (34,488) 148,129
633,126 (144,321)
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R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB BEMN)
5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived after charging:

5  KB#

EWERY

Al

A

BRI AT E M T 0ER T oIS TR R -

2016 2015
HK$ HK$
ik ks
(a)  Staff costs (@) FEEAXT(BREEHE
(including directors’ (FF=ET))
remuneration (note 7))
Salaries, wages and e ITEREMER
other benefits 165,247,635 170,205,864
Discretionary bonuses B I5 8 2 FEAT 6,286,327 1,985,000
Contributions to defined TE B TR R 5T IR
contribution retirement
plans 17,329,161 17,498,246
188,863,123 189,689,110
(b)  Otheritems (b) Hig g
Cost of inventories sold HEFEXA
(note 13(b))* (P sE13(b)) * 863,703,905 886,596,543
Amortisation of interests in BIHRECENERIEER
leasehold land held for 2 g
own use under operating
leases 393,233 399,635
Depreciation e 33,469,391 34,754,459
Auditor’s remuneration ZEB 2 692,000 692,000
Product development costs EmBERKA 3,104,875 510,567
# Cost of inventories includes HK$182,134,810 (2015:  * HEFTERABHEENKARITE AB%182,134,8107T
HK$187,294,585) relating to staff costs and depreciation, (20154 : B# 187,294,585 L) * :Z &M B IER Litl4e
which amounts are also included in the respective total SRS E) ERFEESEERESE -
amounts disclosed separately above or in note 5(a) for each
of these types of expenses.
RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. Annual Report 2016
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Rk B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(UBEREN)
6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 f#rEaBRRZAEH
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(@  Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or  (a) Wi BmRkE5 218
loss represents:
2016 2015
HK$ HK$
i ks
Current tax - Hong Kong REEBIE - BBREH
Profits Tax
Provision for the year (note 12(a)) REREE (M 12() 2,161,817 2,794,522
Over-provision in respect of TFEERERE
prior years (20,000) (800,142)
2,141,817 2,494,380
Current tax - PRC Enterprise REERIE - FEEEMER
Income Tax
Provision for the year (note 12(a)) RERHE (FisE12(0) 11,918,858 2,065,922
Under-provision in respect FEERERD
of prior years 4,366,167 5,109,828
16,285,025 7,175,750
Deferred tax ELEBIR
Origination and reversal of RIERIEE R 2K
temporary differences B REEE (KR 12(0)
(note 12(b)) 3,266,013 (1,253,260)
Income tax expense FER T H 21,692,855 8,416,870
) The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated (i) BANBH RN E R G5 RV AKX

at 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable

profits for the year.

(ii) Taxation of subsidiaries in the PRC are calculated
using the applicable income tax rate of 25% (2015:

25%).

(i)

16.5% (20155 : 16.6%) HRBEAE ©

FER B AT A R IRIR M S AR & 25% (2016 4F -

25%)FtE o

ZE—NFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR B s

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LABWREN)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 #REAEERZFEBH @)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

(0)  Reconciliation between income tax expense and (b))  EREFEFESHRIZHREHEF
accounting profit at the applicable tax rates:

2016 2015
HK$ HK$
M Neodaet
Profit before taxation BT A& A 72,703,999 44,745,339
Notional tax on profit before EHBEEAREE
taxation, calculated at the ZBEEDER B ETIA
rates applicable to profits in
the jurisdictions concerned 16,651,159 8,067,865
Tax effect of non-deductible DA 2 g 2
expenses 1,752,561 476,252
Tax effect of non-taxable income IEERTA 2 B & (1,078,283) (4,998,568)
Effect of temporary differences MEEB BB E
not recognised 21,251 61,635
Under-provisions in respect of FEEFRERD
prior years, net 4,346,167 4,809,686
Actual tax expense ERFRIES T 21,692,855 8,416,870
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7 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Rk B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BVBEREMN)

7 EE#=

EXEMERBEEB(RAERRIE 381(1) 5 K A B <7 AIEBEA 2

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the ~ #&EELAT :
Companies (Disclosure of information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation are as follows:
Salaries,
allowances
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary  Retirement
fees in kind bonuses scheme
Year ended 31 December 2016 e H1E contributions Total
Z2016F12A3N AEEL e  ORMREN  BMZEL  BRASMEX CE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Executive directors YTES
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae BERFRE(FE)

(Chairman) 200,000 9,380 200,000 - 409,380
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man HRGSLE 170,000 3,913,503 300,000 240,000 4,623,503
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin BNBAE 170,000 3,249,380 300,000 300,000 4,019,380
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing RRELE 150,000 1,862,000 200,000 121,500 2,333,500
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng BRFIES A 150,000 - - - 150,000
Ms. Li, Yinghong FRRAT/NE 150,000 - - - 150,000
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit ERATAE 150,000 - - - 150,000
Independent non-executive BYFHTES

directors
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung PR E 210,000 - - - 210,000
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BEksE 210,000 - - - 210,000
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming mEREE 210,000 - - - 210,000
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun BEERE 210,000 - - - 210,000
Alternate director REZ
Mr. Zhang, Yuankun SRITHLAE - 160,478 - - 160,478

1,980,000 9,194,741 1,000,000 661,500 12,836,241
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R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB BEMN)

7 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

7 BEEME @

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)  EE & RIZEEBCA FUERHI NS 381(1) & R A RSP RIS S 2
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the ~ #XFRIA T : (&)
Companies (Disclosure of information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation are as follows (continued):
Salaries,
allowances
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary Retirement
fees inkind bonuses scheme
Year ended 31 December 2015 e ®iE  contributions Total
Z20155 1231 AEEL e ORBREN BMIEA RKEHN &gt
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS HK$
B B ks BE B
Executive directors YTES
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae BRFRE(FE)

(Chairman) 150,000 11,410 200,000 - 361,410
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man HRGSLE 170,000 3,696,616 300,000 240,000 4,406,616
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin BNBAE 170,000 3,251,410 300,000 295,000 4,016,410
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing RRELE 150,000 1,864,000 200,000 120,750 2,334,750
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng BRFIES A 150,000 - - - 150,000
Ms. Li, Yinghong FHAT/MA 150,000 - - - 150,000
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit HRERE 150,000 - - - 150,000
Independent non-executive BUFHITES

directors
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung PR E 210,000 - - - 210,000
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BlELE 210,000 - - - 210,000
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming HRRxE 210,000 - - - 210,000
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun BEELE 210,000 - - - 210,000
Alternate director RES
Mr. Zhang, Yuankun SR E - 160,927 - - 160,927

1,930,000 8,984,363 1,000,000 655,750 12,570,113

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd.
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Rk B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

8 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three
(2015: three) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed
in note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the
other two (2015: two) individuals are as follows:

(BVBEREMN)

8 fEARZRSHMAL

AEBE U HEHHMA LT EEIML(20155F : M) EE
WEZMEEBNMEET » T 26 (20159 : 2fL) ZRE#H
AL ZBEDHImT

2016 2015

HK$ HK$

T ko

Salaries and other emoluments e K H A 1,323,160 1,279,640
Discretionary bonuses BB EE IAEAL 170,000 170,000
Retirement scheme contributions RIRE R 119,057 106,200
1,612,217 1,555,840

The emoluments of the other two (2015 two) individuals
with the highest emoluments are within the following band:

BRI R=HFIA L 24 (20164 : 2fL) BIE& AR AT :

Number of individuals

AE
2016 2015
HKS$NIl - HK$1,000,000 A EEZ T 2% 1,000,000 7T 2 2
9 EARNINGS PER SHARE 9 BRER
(@) Basic earnings per share @ BREFEF

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
HK$51,011,144 (2015: HK$36,328,469) and the weighted
average number of 478,738,490 (2015: 475,053,080)
ordinary shares in issue during the year, calculated as
follows:

EBRERENZTERIAKRD B IE EEKELER T
& 51,011,144 70 (2015 4F « 74 136,328,469 70 ) & 1R
BE AN B BTN TR £478,738,490 (2015 F -
475,053,080) EiEALETHE

ZE-RFER NEREXBRAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR B s

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(ABEREN)
9  EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 9 BRER®W
(@) Basic earnings per share (Continued) @ BREXEF @
Weighted average number of ordinary shares TR MEE G RE
2016 2015

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January W1 A1BEB# T2 BiK 477,392,260 469,429,260
Effect of share options exercised TR 2 R

(note 20(a)(ii)) (Fff 5 20(a)(ii)) 1,346,230 5,623,820
Weighted average number of W12 A31 B2

ordinary shares at 31 December L AR N AR 2 478,738,490 475,053,080

(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) BRBEEFA
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
HK$51,011,144 (2015: HK$36,328,469) and the weighted
average number of 484,028,914 (2015: 482,478,929)
ordinary shares, calculated as follows:

FREBERRN ZTERUARN RN EEGEEEEBRENSE
# 51,011,144 7T (2015 £F © 785 36,328,469 7T ) M e F 5
%8 484,028,914 (2015 £ : 482,478,929) Ei@AETE -

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) i@ inEZHRE (EE)
2016 2015

Weighted average number of P12 A31 B2 E@A%

ordinary shares at 31 December 2 INFEFE AR BX 478,738,490 475,053,080
Effect of deemed issue of shares RIEA R R R T2

under the Company’s NEREEERTT

share option scheme for nil Iz 22 (M5 19)

consideration (note 19) 5,290,424 7,425,849
Weighted average number of W12 A31 Bz LA

ordinary shares (diluted) Z I RS (#E)

at 31 December 484,028,914 482,478,929

Annual Report 2016



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Rk B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

0 SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and
sale of electrical home appliances. In a manner consistent
with the way in which information is reported internally
to the Group’s senior management for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment, the Group
has identified six reportable segments on a geographical
basis: Japan, the United States, the PRC, Europe, Asia
(excluding Japan and the PRC) and rest of the world. The
electrical home appliances are manufactured in the Group’s
manufacturing facilities located in the PRC. The “rest of the
world” segment covers sales of electrical home appliances
to customers in Australia, Canada, South America and
Africa.

(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets and current
assets with the exception of tax balances. Segment
liabilities include trade creditors, accrued charges and other
payables, with the exception of tax balances and dividends
payable, attributable to the manufacture and sale activities
of the individual segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from other revenue and net income,
and the depreciation and amortisation of assets attributable
to those segments.

The measurement used for reporting segment profit is
“adjusted EBITDA” i.e. “adjusted earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortisation”. To arrive at adjusted
EBITDA, the Group’s earnings are further adjusted for items
not specifically attributed to individual segments, such as
other head office or corporate administration costs.

(BVBEREMN)

10 D EPRE
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@ oHEE BEERAEE
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iR B s

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB REN)
10 SEGMENT REPORTING 10 ZDHHE
(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities @) oHXE BEERARE

In addition to receiving segment information concerning FMRESH B FHEEBITDAZ D E ARSI - IR ETNERE
adjusted EBITDA, management is provided with segment BERIHEESE - MEWARBHH - TERBHES
information concerning inter-segment sales, interest income  RE&&#HF 2 BRMEMELE DT 2 IERD DI EE L
and expense from cash balances managed directly by the ~ 2 ZBER o WD IPIHE 2 BIRDEHINEES N 2B -
segments, depreciation and amortisation and additions to

non-current segment assets used by the segments in their

operations. Inter-segment sales are priced with reference to

prices charged to external parties for similar orders.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as EBERETFAEESESETHREEABUDEE R KTE
provided to the Group’s most senior executive management 7 583 2 ERIEHI T °

for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of

segment performance for the year is set out below.

Electrical home appliances

FRER
Asia
(excluding Japan
The United States The PRC Japan Europe and the PRC) Rest of the world Total
28 8 B B S (FaERERYE) 53 Ait

201 215 216 201 216 215 216 215 216 215 201 215 216 201
HKS000 | HKSO00 | HKS'000 | HKS000 | HKSO00 | HKS0D | HKS000 | HKSO00 | HKS000 | HKSOO0 | HKS000 | HKS000 | HKS000 | HKS000
ERTR | RETL | AMTR | ARTL | AMTR | RETT | AMTR | BETR | AMTR | #ATh | ERTR | AMTR | AMTR| TR

Revenus fom ertemal csomers. 1 EF Z4A 28081 | 316433 | TAAT| 58490 | 263109 | 260076 | 265471 181274 | 132503 | 71963 | 66301 | 01204 | 1010442 | 988449

Inter segment revenue AEDHELIN - - | 533004 | 507589 - - - - | o466 | 8305 - 1,428,560 | 1347113

Reportable segment revenue THEATUA 28081 | 316433 | 608941 | 066088 | 263100 | 269076 | 265471 181274 | 1,027,089 | 011487 | 66301 | 91204 | 2448002 | 233,562

Reportable segment profit TREADEA

(adjusted EBITDA) (BEREBITOA) 2421 19140 1,699 3538 | 2029 | 16276 | 26241 | 10966 | 109,448 | 54,096 6,707 5516 | 200551 | 100492
Reportable segment assets TREADEE - S| | as - - - - | 530280 | 551,180 - - | a3 | 895t
Adtions to non-curent TEEETEA

seqment assets cuing the year BB - - | 2| 18789 - - - - 481 - - S| o2ms| 1878
Reporibleseqment labities ~ THEABEE | e | easte | (roseey - - - - | e | ooy - | ponsey | recog
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Rk B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B REN)
10 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 10 ZEEE (&)
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment (b) FAHRETHKA - B - BEREBEZHR
revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Revenue LON
Reportable segment revenue Al RS SR A 2,448,002 2,335,562
Elimination of inter-segment revenue 209 2PURA L 34 (1,428,560) (1,347,113
Consolidated revenue LA A 1,019,442 088,449
Profit A
Reportable segment profit AJRE D EEF 200,551 109,492
Elimination of inter-segment profits NEB o 5B K HE 35 (95,837) (49,704)
Reportable segment profit derived HAREEEINEF 2
from Group’s external customers A #hE o EE 104,714 59,788
Other revenue and net income Ha g A KF R = 1,853 2,007
Net foreign exchange gain upon WEBARGEEZ
deregistration of a subsidiary HNEE 5 R = 17,884
Depreciation and amortisation TE R EsE (33,863) (35,154)
Consolidated profit before taxation AT AR T 72,704 44,745
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AHREDIHEE 857,703 879,551
Elimination of inter-segment receivables &R 30 & Uk BR TE 4K £ (102,451) (140,904)
755,252 738,647
Tax recoverable AR EIHIE 541 1,550
Deferred tax assets RIEFRIAE = 4,910 8,346
Consolidated total assets FRREE 760,703 748,543

T—REFR R
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R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB BEN)

10 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 10 ZEBEE (5
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment (b)) HWHEDHBERA - Bz - EEREF2HIK
revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities (%)
(Continued)
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Liabilities =N
Reportable segment liabilities AHES AL (297,989) (316,596)
Elimination of inter-segment payables R30S0 BRIBIL 34 124,562 142,913
(173,427 (173,683)
Dividends payable FERTRR B, (336) (204)
Tax payable FERHIR (14,742) (10,095)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEA R (308) (168)
Consolidated total liabilities REBAaE (188,813) (184,150)
(€)  Major customers (0 EEEF

Revenue from major customers, each of whom amounted to

REBEFPABZIBA  BEF 2GR A10% A

10% or more of the total revenue, is set out below: o AT
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T ST T
Customer A BEA 302,875 210,198
Customer B ®FB 263,659 270,032
Customer C ®FC 151,276 100,850
Customer D ®FD 138,713 161,395
Customer E ZFE N/A# 176,379
# The corresponding revenue did not contribute 10% or more ~ # BRAKRATZREWA 0% KA E -

of the total revenue.
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8RB et
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(UBBREN)
I PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11 BEEE
AND LEASEHOLD LAND
(@) Reconciliation of carrying amount (@) IREEENHE
Interests in Interests in
leasehold land leasehold land
held for own use held for own
under finance Furniture, use under
leases  Buildings held fixtures and operating leases
Construction  HEHEME  forownuse  Plantand  equipment Motor RESEHE Total

inprogress  BAFER BEER  machinery Bf- vehicles  Sub-otal BEER  BETEE
ERIR  ZiMBE (BN BERER  RERRG HE M 2t ait
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS

Cost: A

A1 January 2015 R15E1A1H 6923030 5235120 195862121 22435675 131994962 14021031 578392930 17088217 595,431,156
Fxchange adustments Jokhd 407,848 - 8Tigry 9737030 (85%0,110) (582934 (29129901) (1008752  (30,133659)
Additions 1 7407074 - - 31783 7145700 3143% 18788932 - 187883992
Transfers &y (11,325,884) - - 798317 10527567 - - - -
Disposals if - - - (509869 (6956339  (1988200)  (14,021,408) - (14021408
At 31 December 2015 RA15E12A31R 2506372 5235120 185,000,142 21424085 134181780 11784292 554030562  16,034465 570065007
At1 January 2016 RO16E1A1E 2506372 5235120 185,000,142  2142408% 134181780 11784292 554030562  16,034465 570065007
Exchange adustments Jop bt (164,711) - (10004019 (0620429 (9,114361) [27565) (29331085 (107,07 (30,348292)
Adaitions #n 13,997 554 - - - TEASS 1260246 22,728,055 - DT2805
Transfers L:17 (1,078,586 - N R R I AR TAT - - - -
Disposals ik - - 606y (463200 (4445685 (1796867  (10,880511) - [10880511)

At 31 December 2016 120165 124318 5200629 5236120 175080060 201,961,750 137260156 10829306 536547021 15017208 561,564,279
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iR B s

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LB BEMN)

Il PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT Il RBEE&EE®)
AND LEASEHOLD LAND (Continued)

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (Continued) ~ (2) RREBEMNE (1)

Interests in Interests in
leasehold land leasehold land
held for own use held for own
under finance Furniture, use under
leases  Buildings held fixtures and operating leases
Construction  HEHEBE  forownuse  Plantand  equipment Motor RESEHE Total

inprogress  BAFER BEER  machinery Bf- vehicles  Sub-otal BEER  BETEE
ERIR  ZiMBE (BN BERER  RERRG HE M 2t ait
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS

Accumulated B BURAE:

amortisation

and depreciation:
At 1 January 2015 201581 1A - 1884641 146565434 154847199 67515770 11065466 381878510 7962233 389,840,743
Exchange adustments Jif - - (130054 (pOA2107 (4731525 (476303 (18200474 (469,089 (18,669,543
Charge for the year TEENE - 104703 649602 81831% 18557911 959,100 34754450 309635 35,154,094
Disposals i - - - 419018 4157001 (1746283 (10,095,302 - (10095302)
At 31 December 2015 015812 A31A - 1980344 146164492 183196213 77,185,195 9801989 388,337,193 7892799 396,229,992
At 1 January 2016 RA016E1A1A - 1980344 146164492 153196213 77,185,155 9801989 388,337,193 7892799 396229992
Exchange adfustments bt - - BIAT) (6154971 (6,389,242 (380,011)  (21,085,701) (519,659  (21575,360)
Charge for the year TEENE - 104,703 6,836,422 7790697 18122400 615169 33,469,301 393,233 33862624
Disposals ik - - (@002 89N (3996725 (1562472 (953459 - (95345%)
At 31 December 2016 RA016F12 831 - 2004047 144865435 150,860,543 84,921,588 8474675 391216268 7766373 398,982,661
Canrying value: REFE:
At 31 December 2016 R016512 4317 5,290,629 3141073 31114625 51001207 52,338,568 2354631 145,330,733 7250885 152581618
At 31 December 2015 015512 A31A 2,596,372 3246776 39825650  61,046643 56,996,625 19682303 165,693,369 8141666 173,835,035
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8RB M
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B REN)
Il PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT || BEEE @)
AND LEASEHOLD LAND (Continued)
(b)  The analysis of carrying value of properties  (P) WREEFEIMAT
is as follows:
2016 2015
HK$ HK$
it ks
Medium-term leases FHEE
—in Hong Kong -&BA 8,065,816 8,956,410
— outside Hong Kong — BB 33,440,767 42,256,682
41,506,583 51,213,092
Representing: AR
Buildings held for own use FERREEY 31,114,625 39,825,650
Interests in leasehold land held BB HHAERIETR
for own use under finance leases 2 HihiERs 3,141,073 3,245,776
Interests in leasehold land held B EAERIETR
for own use under operating leases iR 7,250,885 8,141,666
41,506,583 51,213,092
ZE—NFFR MREEBRAR 97




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR B s

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(ABSREMN)

12 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 12 RGEMBRARNFAEH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2 AL N VA
(@) Current taxation in the consolidated (2) HEMBRRRZFEH
statement of financial position represents:

2016 2015
HK$ HK$
it ks
Provision for the year (note 6(a)) NEEREE (M 6)
— Hong Kong Profits Tax - BABEH 2,161,817 2,794,522
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax - PR EER 11,918,858 2,065,922
14,080,675 4,860,444
Provisional tax paid TEER S
- Hong Kong Profits Tax - BABEH (2,794,510) (4,415,970)
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax - PRI ST (5,959,724) (387,712)
(8,754,234) (4,803,682)
5,326,441 56,762
Balance of income tax provisions TFEMSRBEARTE
relating to prior years (Note) 8,874,862 8,488,790
14,201,303 8,545,552
Represented by: 2751 :
Tax recoverable AR B FE I8 541,174 1,549,617
Tax payable eI (14,742,477) (10,095,169)
(14,201,303) (8,545,552)
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Rk B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

12 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(@@ Current taxation in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents:
(Continued)

Note:

Included in the balance of income tax provisions relating to prior
years are provision, net of payment, of approximately HK$8,615,000
(2015: HK$8,412,000) and HK$NIl (2015: HK$NIl) for the tax
adjustment relating to transfer-pricing audit in respect of the years
ended 31 December 2002 to 2011 (“2002 to 2011 TP Audit”) and
the years ended 31 December 2012 to 2015 (“2012 to 2015 TP
Audit”) respectively by the PRC tax authorities. Details of the transfer
pricing audits are as follows:

2002 to 2011 TP Audit

In 2013, the PRC tax authorities initiated a transfer pricing audit on a
subsidiary of the Company in the PRC in respect of the years ended
31 December 2002 to 2011. The Group has been in discussions
with the PRC tax authorities with a view to conclude the transfer-
pricing audit. To date no determination has been made by the PRC
tax authorities. During the years ended 31 December 2013, 2014,
2015 and 2016, with consideration of the most recent negotiations
between the officials of Nansha tax bureau, the Group has made
a provision of RMB94,000, RMB5,790,000, RMB4,119,000 and
RMB1,000,000 (equivalent to HK$120,000, HK$7,331,000,
HK$4,985,000 and HK$1,173,000) respectively against the potential
tax exposures estimated by the management. At 31 December
2016, the cumulative provisions made against the potential tax
adjustment relating to the transfer-pricing audit amounted to
RMB11,003,000 (equivalent to HK$13,609,000). Of this, in 2014,
the Group paid RMB3,000,000 (equivalent to HK$3,799,000) to
the tax authorities. Accordingly, the tax payable of RMB8,003,000
(equivalent to HK$8,615,000) is included in this line item.

2012 to 2015 TP Audit

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the PRC tax authorities
initiated a transfer-pricing audit on the same subsidiary in respect
of the years ended 31 December 2012 to 2015. The Group
has reached a consensus with the PRC tax authority and paid
RMB2,338,000 (equivalent to HK$2,786,000) to settle the case.
Such amount is included in the under-provision of PRC enterprise
income tax in respect of prior years as disclosed in note 6(a).
Accordingly, the tax payable in relating to the 2012 to 2015 TP Audit
is HK$Nil at 31 December 2016.

(BVBEREMN)

12 REEHMBRREROMAER (@

() HZEMBRRRZAEH (B

BT

TEENIIBR R IEEE - F2 - #9/8% 8,615,000 (20154 12

A318 : ##8,412,1007T) ME B Z L (20156412 A31 8 : &
BT )RR AR EE A 2002 EE2011FE12 A31BEERE
1B ([2002 F 2 2011 FFEREEEF S |) M2012F £ 2015512
A31BEEEREE([2012F 2015 FBREBES |) 2 BE
RIBAE - BREEZSHBOT ¢

2002 F £2011 FERERESL

20183  REAAMAEE R R —HE R FH 20024 £ 2011
F12A31 AFEEEREE SEEPEBAETERESREEEH
o ZRSHREBAMIIEETE - 220134 ~ 20144 ~ 20154
K&2016F12 A31 HILFE - KB EENMELPBERBE B
FEREERRE - R BB EHIEFEE L EE B AR 94,000
JT + AR 5,790,000 7T + AR 4,119,000 7T & A R # 1,000,000
7T (FHE R &M 120,000 7T ~ B 7,331,000 7T * & # 4,985,000 7T
K B#1,173,0007T) - 2016 F 12 AT HEMBREZEDETH
75 25T AR 11,003,000 7T (A8 1 %5 13,609,000 7T ) © E
o ARSI 2014 F AR ISR < AR 8 3,000,000 7T (FEE R
83,799,000 7T) © EItt + FEAS T A R 8,008,000 7T (FHE 7
7518,615,0007T) EFIALLIER ©

2012 22015 FEREREE

HZE2016F12A31HILFE - FEBRAARERAAIRE—MEA
RIAM2012F 22015412 A31 HFEEBREFE - ALBE D HF
Bl FR A5 A B S A A - WA AR5 2,338,000 7T (FHE R B
2,786,000 7T ) LABRIR LT - iZE S BB IEENE6 (a) BRI AR
FEPEGEMSHAZHBERT o Bt - 822012 F 2015 F(EHE
EEESAWENENFEEAN 201612 A31 HABKZ T -

I AN NREXARAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR B s

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LB BEMN)

12  INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 12 RGREMBEMRIROASH @
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities (b)) CEREEHBREEREMS:
recognised:
2016 2015
HK$ HK$
ik IR
Net deferred tax assets SFRETIEE &= 4,910,372 8,345,504
Net deferred tax liabilities FIRIEFIEA R (308,070) (167,906)
4,602,302 8,177,598

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised AR EERGAMBRARTORRAZELERBEE, (A
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the &) B4R R E & &) 2 BT -
movements during the year are as follows:

Depreciation

allowances
in excess of
the related Other
depreciation temporary
Deferred tax arising from: Tax losses IEZEEX differences Total
BEERBEZEER : HIEEE RERITE HttET=ER ast
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
kia Vokia B s
At 1 January 2015 R2015F1 A1 H 134,736 (61,472) 7,228,930 7,302,194
Exchange adjustments HmEs) o2 - - (377,856) (377,856)
(Charged)/credit to profit or £ % F 3k 518 2 Fkk
loss (note 6(a)) (FF3E6(a)) (34,847) (7,700) 1,295,807 1,253,260
At 31 December 2015 MR20154 12 A31 H 99,889 (69,172) 8,146,881 8,177,598
At 1 January 2016 7R2016F1 A1H 99,889 (69,172) 8,146,881 8,177,598
Exchange adjustments Hinge) o w28 - - (309,283) (309,283)
Credit/(charged) to profit or £ % F =k E518 2 Fkk
loss (note 6(a)) (M5 6(a)) 18,777 (50,472) (3,234,318) (3,266,013)
At 31 December 2016 7R20164F12 A31H 118,666 (119,644) 4,608,280 4,602,302
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8RB M
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B REN)
13 INVENTORIES 13 ®E
(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement of (2) RMBRRAKRFERSE :
financial position comprise:
2016 2015
HK$ HK$
Raw materials R 57,128,495 59,283,621
Work in progress R o 58,882,211 51,312,369
Finished goods EEFK i - 77,340
Goods in transit TR YRt - 1,662,110
116,010,706 112,335,440
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories (b)) FEEEZI/NECEIRHEBANT :
recognised as an expense is as follows:
2016 2015
HK$ HK$
i s
Carrying amount of inventories sold FERIHERAEE 864,419,342 882,429,849
Write-down of inventories FERE 1,006,738 4,166,694
Reversal of write-down of inventories 17 & el {& [2] £ (1,722,175) -
863,703,905 886,596,543
14 TRADEAND OTHER RECEIVABLES 14 EZRHEMEWIRE
2016 2015
HK$ HK$
b ks
Trade debtors BHEBEA 215,973,619 185,064,826
Other debtors EAERA 7,715,388 10,661,959
Deposits and prepayments Rl RIENFRIA 11,335,419 12,278,479
235,024,426 208,005,264

All of the trade and other receivables, apart from
certain deposits amounting to HK$1,062,423 (2015:
HK$3,538,958), are expected to be recovered or recognised
as expenses within one year.

PIAHE 5 MEMEWERIE - RElhike 2 REK 1,062,423

JL(20154F : ¥ 3,538,958 7T ) + HAR 1 45 (A AJ Y [l ok FERR
BB -

ZE—NFFR

NEREXBRAF
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R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB BEMN)

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

(@)  Ageing analysis

The ageing analysis of trade debtors as of the end of the
reporting period, based on invoice date, is as follows:

B R EMEWIRE (&)

RERREZEHAZRRIREZAHOFOT

2016 2015

HK$ HK$

it Nokesd

Within 1 month 1EAR 71,184,244 88,471,436
1 to 3 months 1EAZ3EA 98,719,861 87,827,025
3 to 12 months 3EAZE121EA 46,049,078 8,277,754
Over 12 months HBiE121EA 20,436 488,611
215,973,619 185,064,826

Trade debtors are due within 30 to 120 days from the date
of billing. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set
out in note 22(a).

(b) Trade debtors that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:

BSEEAREHRZEALI0E 120 KRNEE - REEZ
EEBEERFHAME22(@) -

(b) REBEZEZEBA

BHEHEAZREDITIR BB OHZEERENT

2016 2015

HK$ HK$

Neither past due nor impaired RAEBESORE 167,645,839 176,791,030

Less than 1 month past due el UK DS 42,272,755 2,746,530

1 to 3 months past due B HA 1 & A = 31E A 4,629,781 4,794,902
More than 3 months but less than wHAREASEAE LR 12ME A

12 months past due 1,412,697 293,333

More than 12 months past due wHAERA 1218 A 12,547 439,031

Amounts past due SRR 48,327,780 8,273,796

215,973,619 185,064,826
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Rk B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)
(b) Trade debtors that are not impaired

(Continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are considered fully recoverable.

(BB REMN)

14 EBZRHEMEKEKRE@®
(b) REREZEZEBAE

FEYSRIEDR BB MR ER KN EF 2B AR -

ERMELRREIERENBRUTFEARERARA
Rifecsr - RIBBELR  BEBRGHSEREEREE
REE R M AERIER 2 BB PTLOR B EHRE 2

I5 CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS 15 ReEkREEEER
2016 2015
HK$ HK$
peote o
Bank deposits RITEBITF X 179,241,421 147,716,225
Cash at bank and in hand RITFER RS 72,393,054 96,755,955
251,634,475 244,472,180
|6 TRADEAND OTHER PAYABLES l6 EBZRHEAMEMSRE
2016 2015
HK$ HK$
it B
Trade creditors EEEEA 120,040,969 120,430,319
Accrued charges and other payables — JET 8 3 & E b fE{F BR I8 53,385,686 53,253,223
173,426,655 173,683,542
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be FTBE 5 MEMEMNERER 1 FAZL
settled within one year.
—TAEER | NREEARAF
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R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB BEMN)

16 TRADEAND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

The ageing analysis of trade creditors as of the end of the
reporting period, based on invoice date, is as follows:

l6 EZREMESIRE®)

RBERRE D ERAZRRILEZAHOMAT ¢

2016 2015

HK$ HK$

Within 1 month 1EAR 49,013,024 45,531,367
1 to 3 months 1= 31EA 63,023,030 65,441,307
3 to 12 months 3E1218A 5,406,504 7,121,873
Over 12 months HBiE121E A 2,598,411 2,335,772
120,040,969 120,430,319

|7 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT
PLANS

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance (the “Ordinance”). The scheme is
defined contribution retirement plan administered by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately upon the
completion of service in the relevant service period.

At 31 December 2016, certain employees of the Group had
completed the required number of years of service under
the Ordinance and are eligible for long service payments on
termination of their employment. The Group is only liable
to make such payments when the termination meets the
required circumstances specified in the Ordinance and the
employees’ entitlement is not covered by the aforesaid
provident funds. At 31 December 2016, the Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme and the accrued interest
thereon exceeded the potential liabilities should the required
circumstances specified in the Ordinance be met.

Annual Report 2016

17 REMHFRKETE

AEBEREBRBMELBSFIEHASRET B RMEMRK
(T&BI ) PIBLEREMRE 2 BB RERIBHIEAE S
g([aEestdl))  ZRBEeHE MBI ETEESER -
RBEBECE AEEREERHEEARREEERT
& 5% R EEF B - FE LRSS AER30,0007T ©
P IR IR TS SR L HAR S AR B

£2016F 12 A31H  AEEMIMHE IMNREFHD =
EEBERBEOI(TEL D MRE  FEEAREERNTE
ERRB S AMELEIETZBERET  AEBAR
ZHBEARZEINBZERETEINERBRE SN
EE o HFTATA KN 2 B TBER; - NEBE20164F 12
A1 BEAESTEPRGFEZHBZNMENEE 2 BEER

f& e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Rk B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

17 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT

PLANS (Continued)

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC also participate in
defined contribution retirement schemes covering its full-
time PRC employees. The schemes are administered by
the relevant government authorities in the PRC. The Group
and the PRC employees are required to make contributions
based on certain percentages of the applicable payroll costs
as stipulated under the requirements in the PRC and the
relevant government authorities undertake to assume the
retirement benefit obligations of all existing and future retired
employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC.

18 BANKING FACILITIES

At 31 December 2016, the Group had unsecured revolving
banking facilities of HK$68,350,000 (2015: HK$68,350,000).
The banking facilities include documentary letters of credit,
trust receipt, bill payables, trade loans and trade guarantee.
The amount utilised by the Group at 31 December 2016
under these facilities was HK$176,505 (2015: HK$119,102).

19 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme which was
adopted on 6 June 2003 whereby the directors of the
Company are authorised, at their discretion, to invite (i)
directors, employees of any member of the Group or
any controlling shareholder of the Company (“Controlling
Shareholder”) or any company controlled by a Controlling
Shareholder; (ii) holder of any securities issued by any
member of the Group or any Controlling Shareholder of
the Company or any company controlled by a Controlling
Shareholder; and (ji) (a) any business or joint venture partner,
contractor, agent or representative of, (b) any supplier of
goods or services to, or (c) any customer or distributor
of goods or service of, any member of the Group or any
Controlling Shareholder or a company controlled by a
Controlling Shareholder; to take up options to subscribe for
shares of the Company. A nominal consideration of HK$1.00
is paid by these participants for each lot of share options
granted. The options are exercisable from the date of grant
within a period of ten years. Each option gives the holder the
right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.

(BVBEREMN)

17 FREMHFRKTE @)

AEEETENHERARFTEATHEEAZBBETRIR
REKETE - WA BIXP BB ARBEEE - AEEX
BTRRUAIRESREBHFEZ —EADLLFELH
R MEBBTAGAEASBETRBENMNBARZER
BEARIKEKRE T ZRIRBHNEE -

18 RITEEHE

f£2016F 12 A31 H - AEBRIRTES 2 EAEEKBEER
%8 E #) 57 #68,350,000 7T (20154 : 7% # 68,350,000
JL) o RITZEEREEUNRARERIT - EalE - BEE
% BHERNESER ABHCREEEENAEE
176,505 7¢ (20154 : B 119,1027T) °

19 EnEMUROKERRS

RRRN2003F6 A6 AR BEREFS > AARERE
XBEBEAERT () AEBEAKERRHARFE 2EZER
PR (THRARBUR 1) SRR PTEHI 2 ARIZES - BR
(i) FBARBEEMKE - ERBR RSB BRATES 2 2
BITBRITZERNESZHAA ¢ Rli)@) EMEBLA R
o EERE - RERKE So)EAEmIRBHER
O ERMFELADHE  NDASBEEMFKE RIZERER
HARERBRRES ZERAR  (TEBRERBEARRR
27 ATNEBI T ZREUINRBEE —HLEAE -
BREITEHREREBEF10FA - B1BERETHA
AZRENRBAR RN T —BE @A -

I AN NREXARAF
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(ABSREMN)

19 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 19 RFIENURMAERRZS @)
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants (a) EAFERTZEROT - HEFAEERE
that existed during the years ended 3| LUER R AT 2 IREEME AT -
December 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

Contractual life

Number of of options
instruments - i d
TEZE HHFH
Options granted to directors: BREETES
— on 30 June 2008 - A 200846 A30H 11,767,600 10 years
— on 6 October 2009 -7 2009F 10 A6 H 2,700,000 10 years
—on 20 July 2012 - 201297 A20H 11,600,000 10 years
Options granted to employees: ERERTES
— on 30 June 2008 - A 200846 A 30H 5,373,000 10 years
— on 6 October 2009 -7 2009F 10 A6 H 740,000 10 years
—on 20 July 2012 - 201297 A20H 4,128,000 10 years
Options granted to other eligible persons: BREETEEBAL
— on 30 June 2008 -7 20084F6 AH30H 3,100,000 10 years
Total share options 1B EE RS 39,408,600
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Rk B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BVBEREMN)

19 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 19 HERENSUROGHEERRS (&)
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(b) The number and weighted average exercise (b) MBREZHEBRINEFITEBEDE :
prices of share options are as follows:
2016 2015
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price of options price of options
hnrEEY MR T i
TEE ZHE 1TE(E ZHE
HK$ ’000 HK$ 000
it TR T FAx
Outstanding at the FHIRITE
beginning of the year 0.798 29,670 0.798 39,408
Exercised during the year ~ ANF[E1T{# 0.823 (2,480) 0.799 (7,963)
Cancelled during the year ~ ZREZ % HA 0.759 (1,383) 0.782 (1,775)
Qutstanding at the end REZIERITEE
of the year 0.798 25,807 0.798 29,670
Exercisable at the end REFIEAITE
of the year 0.798 25,807 0.798 29,670

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
share options exercised during the year was HK$0.99 (2015:
HK$1.03).

The options outstanding at 31 December 2016 had an
exercise price of HK$0.630, HK$0.690, HK$0.910 (2015:
HK$0.630, HK$0.690 and HK$0.910) and a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 3.2 years (2015: 4.2
years).

NEZITERBRERITER Z METFHIREARBE 099 7T
(20154 : B¥1.037L) °

7201612 431 A RTTEEIRE 2 1T A5 %0.6307T
75 0.690 7T & B % 0.910 7T (2015 F : B #0.6307T ~ /&
#0.690 7T B 0.910 7T ) RN FIT % N ZLOFHE 3.2
F (20154 1 4.24F) -

ZE-RFER NEREXBRAF

107



108 RAYMOND Industrial Ltd.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB BEMN)

19 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c)  Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share
options granted is measured based on Black Scholes
model. The fair value measurement is categorised within
level 2. The contractual life of the share option is used as
an input into this model. Expectations of early exercise are
incorporated into the Black Scholes model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions:

19 HERESURGAER

——
/\ /+\
RS (&)

() BREZAFERRER

?JET‘sTéHjE%Hi%ﬁﬁ%%ZﬁE%%Z@i@B%%ﬁﬁ?f%ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ%
NFEMEE - ﬁfr?ﬁu”ﬂ%%%z%?r N HETI R EEHRS

8 AHENDE2HE - BREZAOFHIERILA

BAZBAE - i‘EHﬂkiﬁﬁﬁE)ﬂﬁé%éﬂ%‘t

B A TERER
Date of grant
RFEH

6 October 2009
2009410 H6H

30 June 2008
20086 A 30 H

20 July 2012
2012F7H20H

Fair value at measurement date RET2 B8z AFE
Share price B (&
Exercise price 15 E

Expected volatility (expressed
as weighted average volatility
used in the modelling under
the Black Scholes model)

Option life (expressed as
weighted average life used in

FHREBRTR)

the modelling under the Black FHRIERT)
Scholes model)

Expected dividends TEHARR B

Risk-free interest rate (based on ERRFIE (JR3F
3-year Hong Kong Fund INEERESES)

Exchange Notes)

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life
of the share options), adjusted for any expected changes
to future volatility based on publicly available information.
Expected dividends are based on historical dividends.
Changes in the subjective input assumptions could materially
affect the fair value estimate.

There were no market conditions associated with the share
option grants.
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TEERR B (A RERIER
TR T AR TE FT A b

HK$0.0929 48 7T
HK$0.6900 8 7T
HK$0.6900 8 7T

HK$0.13685 /87T HK$0.11295 /87T
HK$0.90000 7% 7t HK$0.61000 % 7T
HK$0.91000 7 7t HK$0.63000 % 7T

BT ARHERN
TR T RRE FT A D

36.94% 44.579% 33.073%

3 years 3 years 3 years
6.67% 8.20% 6.687%
2.87% 0.931% 0.182%

T8 HRIR 08 5 1 0 1R 08 (TR BB A i 2 D 7 19 /U &R 4F HART
H)RHE - WERBAFREAS ﬁﬂi‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁ{éx)ﬂmﬁ’]Eﬂ
EHFRAE - BHRENIRBEZRE c THARREA
Bz& @JT%T’A?EZM#LE@EKWE

FE R 2 15 SR T A 0 SR B



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR B MIaE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LB HEN)
20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 20 EXR-RERRE
(@) Share capital @ B’AX
(i) Issued share capital (i) BRITRA
2016 2015
Number of Number of
shares HK$ shares HK$
BREZE pigics it 2 Nigect
Ordinary shares, issued Ly - BRI -
and fully paid:
At 1 January W1A1H 477,392,260 445,820,688 469,429,260 438,527,402
Share issued under share 3177 BB AR FEAR (D
option scheme 2,480,000 2,346,648 7,963,000 7,293,286
At 31 December ®12 A31H 479,872,260 448,167,336 477,392,260 445,820,688

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary
shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual
assets.
(ii) Shares issued under share option scheme

During the year ended 31 December 2016, options were
exercised to subscribe for 2,480,000 (2015: 7,963,000)
ordinary shares of the Company at a total cash consideration
of HK$2,040,800 (2015: HK$6,363,830).

EARTAABEINREBMEROERE - XERNAE
Eed tRER-FEREXR - A ERAREAEER
BEHMARFHAL -

(i) BRERTZRE

HZ2016F 12 A31 HEE I - REREEE 2,040,800 7T
(20154 : 7% 6,363,830 70 ) 171 BB AR 188 & 2,480,000 A%
NEEEAT (20154F 7,963,000 X E@A%) °

ZE-RFER NEREXBRAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB BEMN)

20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)

(@)  Share capital (Continued)

(iii) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share
options at the end of the reporting period

20

(iii)

BR - BERKRE (@

IR ()

RBERRKEE B 2 R RARITENERE

Exercise 2016 2015

Exercise period price Number Number

1TEHA TEE #eE =

30 June 2008 to 29 June 2018 20086 A30R=E HK$0.910 13,322,600 15,372,600
201846 A 29 H B 0.910 7T

6 October 2009 to 5 October 2019 2009F 10 A6 H = HK$0.630 2,360,000 2,800,000
201910 A5 H 75 #0.630 7T

20 July 2012 to 19 July 2022 201267 A20H=E HK$0.690 10,125,000 11,498,000
2022%7 A19H 71 0.690 7T

25,807,600 29,670,600

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one ordinary
share in the Company. Further details of these options are

set out in note 19.

BEABRAE - RBERERBE -—RAQAFEEK - BH
BRI BTN AR BREMEE19 -

(b) Dividends b) KRE
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the  (j) AEEEMNKREEANTREEN
Company attributable to the year
2016 2015
HK$ HK$
ik ko
Interim dividend declared and paid BEMRIREE 2 RS
of 2 HK cents per ordinary share FREE RS 2L
(2015: 2 HK cents per ordinary (20154 : GREBAEE 21L)
share) 9,597,446 9,546,845
Final dividend proposed after the PAGRE BIRR IS 2 RERR R
end of the reporting period BRE AR 41U
of 4HK cents per ordinary share (20154 : GRRL BB 410)
(2015: 4 HK cents per ordinary
share) 19,194,890 19,095,690
Special dividend proposed after ARG AR
the end of the reporting period F5 R A% BB I B A A 21
of 2 HK cents per ordinary share (20154 : 48#)
(2015: Nil) 9,597,445 -
38,389,81 28,642,535

110 RAYMOND Industrial Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Rk B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)
(b) Dividends (Continued)

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the year (Continued)

The final and special dividends proposed after the end of the
reporting period have not been recognised as liabilities at the
end of the reporting period.

(BVBEREMN)

20 EBXR - REERERRE @)
(b) KE@

() AFEENREEXDRRREMSL(E)

R SRS HIRIR 33 S k3 2 RS M Il B R A
BEHRRERRAE -

(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) REFEEMSREERAATRREGRELAFED
Company attributable to the previous financial HERIZA
year, approved and paid during the year
2016 2015
HK$ HK$
it VB
Final dividend in respect of the TFERMBEAFER
previous financial year, approved HE R R EER
and paid during the year, M ANl (20154 ¢
of 4 HK cents per ordinary share R BREE 4(L)
(2015: 4 HK cents per ordinary
share) 19,149,690 19,036,890
Special dividend in respect of the FEERIREAEAFED
previous financial year, approved R SR E B
and paid during the year, BHEEE T (2015 4F ¢
of nil cents per ordinary share BRETBEREE2ML)
(2015: 2 HK cents per ordinary
share) - 9,518,446
19,149,690 28,555,336
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves () REZHEEREHN
(i) Exchange reserve (i) BE RS

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the consolidated
financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with accounting policies set out in
note 2(q).

IE R R R B B LBINERS 2 47 & B TS TS BV TE
RER - RBREENGHBERM T2 BEE -

I AN NREXARAF
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R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB BEMN)

20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

()  Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(i) Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the actual
or estimated number of unexercised share options granted
to employees of the Group and other eligible persons
recognised in the accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments in note 2(m).

(iii)  PRC statutory reserve

Pursuant to the laws and regulations governing the PRC
enterprises, certain of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries, which
are wholly foreign-owned enterprises, are required to allocate
at least 10% of their after-tax profit but before dividend
distribution to general reserve until the reserve has reached
50% of their registered capital. The general reserve can only
be used, upon approval by the relevant authority, to offset
accumulated losses or increase capital. Appropriation to
general reserve during the year amounted to approximately
HK$434,330 (2015: HK$834,800).

(d) Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2016, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company was HK$24,888,873 (2015: HK$45,522,285).
After the end of the reporting period, the directors proposed
a final dividend of 4 HK cents and a special dividend of 2
HK cents per ordinary share (2015: a final dividend of 4 HK
cents and a special dividend of Nil) totaling HK$28,792,335
(2015: HK$19,095,690). These dividends have not been
recognised as liabilities at the end of the reporting period.

Annual Report 2016

20 EX - REERRE @

(0 REZHERENGE
(i) EBEXREE

B e B FR AR IR & 5t BRI & 2(m) BR A AR A B BB AR
TRAEEREMEEBRAL ZEEREF RITERBRE
HEMRHEER -

(i) PECEERE

KEBREARLEMEAZ ZERBTHEEZERK  AEE
ZHEHBARBINGBELE ALK 10% D 2FHiE
RSB ERHEEG BEEZREBEFMELRNL0% A
IF o EREHERAEEFRE RIERRIEEREHBERIE
MER - REEHAEE L BRFEGZEEEL ABE 434,330
(20154 : /&1 834,800 7T) °

(d) FAIDEEE

MH2016F 12 A1 HEFAIDRFARRRREZ S5
B HE 24,888,873 7L (2015 4 : 545,522,285 7T) ° A
HEHR  EEERETRBRL BRI BB 4L AR
i&% B R R R ER BB EE 24 (2015 F : B E BT R
BABAUIERRERIREBEEZIL) - A8 28,792,335
(2015 4F : %5 19,095,690) ° AN & BiRE LR B R
REAE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Rk B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)
(e) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes judgements
to the capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its
capital structure on the basis of a net debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio. For this purpose the Group defines net debt
as total debt (which includes trade and other payables) plus
unaccrued proposed dividends. Adjusted capital comprises
all components of equity less unaccrued proposed
dividends.

During 2016, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged
from 2015, was to maintain the net debt-to-adjusted capital
ratio of no more than 37% (2015: 35%). In order to maintain
or adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return
capital to shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell
assets to reduce debt.

(BVBEREMN)

20 EX - REERRE @

() BAEE
AEBZEABEZATERAUREAEE 2 HBELEY
BE  MEEERBERRERMHEBREAEMERALTIE
MHz - AEREE RER KA HERS RIAEE
KAZZERES -

AEEXPHREMRGTEEABERBAERT FESERK
R RERZ2RESEENINR - RELEER TEL
HERERRDBE 2 HIE -

HITEEN B AEEGANFEEHLABRER L XS
HEEERHEARRE - 5t - AREZEAR(BERESR
HAb AR R M BB T AT EZRRERE - &
HEEABEMEEDN T EERRERE -

R20164F » A&EE 2RISR 2016 F —1 - REFHFA
EE AR AE L P T HE3837% (201564F : 35%) » B T #
FRABLH - AEBEAEAREIRN TRRERZRE - %
Tk REBRATRER BEHMERREXHEELE
VAR AEIR ©

I AN NREXARAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB BEMN)

20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(e) Capital management (Continued)

The net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at 31 December 2016

20 EX - REERRE @

(e) EX

R 2016 FFE K 201512 A 31 H 2 % & (F & AR A

and 2015 was as follows: T -
2016 2015
HK$ HK$
ik B
Current liabilities: mENEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAEIRIA 173,426,655 173,683,542
Add: Proposed dividends 0 ERIREERR S 28,792,335 19,095,690
Net debt B8EFE 202,218,990 192,779,232
Total equity BrE 571,889,322 564,392,636
Less: Proposed dividends W BRI ERR R (28,792,335) (19,095,690)
Adjusted capital BAEER 543,096,987 545,296,946
Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio FE EEFFEREHILLH 37% 35%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject
to externally imposed capital requirements.

2l COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2016 not
provided for in the consolidated financial statements were as

ARRREMBARHTEZINRBBERBRNTE

21 TRiE

720164 12 A 31 HiR & M %M &8 F 12 B H R B 4K
T

follows:

2016 2015
HK$ HK$
bt Nigect
Contracted for: B4
- Purchase of equipment and moulds - BEEREHENME A 4,740,231 5,458,347

114 RAYMOND Industrial Ltd.
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Rk B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign
currency risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s
business. The Group’s exposure to risks and the financial
risk management policies and practices used by the Group
to manage these risks are described below.

(2)

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash and
cash equivalents and trade debtors. The maximum exposure
to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Credit risk and concentration risk

Substantially all the Group’s cash and cash equivalents are
deposited in financial institutions in Hong Kong and the PRC.
The credit risk is limited as the majority of counterparties
are financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit rating agencies or stated-controlled
financial institutions with good reputations.

In respect of trade debtors, management has a credit policy
in place and the exposure to the credit risk is monitored on
an ongoing basis. Individual credit evaluations are performed
on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to the customer as
well as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade debtors are due within 30 to 120
days from the date of billing. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers. Management considers the
aggregate risks arising from the possibility of credit losses
are limited and to be acceptable.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer. The default
risks of the industry and country in which customers operate
also have an influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 42% (2015: 27%); and 71%
(2015: 74%) of the trade debtors was due from the largest
customer and the five largest customers respectively.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade debtors are set out
in note 14.

(BVBEREMN)

22 HEEMREERAFE

EE - B2RPlE  MERINERBRENAEEN—RE
BHERPESL - ELRR T Y HRER S XA E B
EEBRMERRE T -

@ FEERBREPEE
rEERNEERREZEREREeIESEEEBERESE
BA - BREERBR ZEEZVRGEMERAKRTEE
WIS EERAME -

AEEFERGLASFERE —REANEERIZE
ARTESHEE ERPBUEZEERREEREAX
ZHEASNHRERREEFERBIREERTZNG
W R BRI S 2 RIFEBHM GRS -

HREZEBAME  EREARENEERR  XEFE
EEMASNERERR - HRAEERBBETEEESR
ZEPHEETENEENE HEFEETEHHEELNU
E R HI R LR LR RENES - YEEFFHE
MEMEEPMEMNEERENER - B RUFIAHE
HEREE B#5T30-120 H A EIHE] - #Ba— A Z RUBR A
7 BFZHEEHIER TEAEMEE - AEE—K
TEREPWHRERR - MEASTH  ERERSHE
EzEERBELEZ ZFRBARNAIER

AEEFEEZEERE  TEXZEFP 2B
2 - XPREMEZITERBRR 2B ESRARTZEEZER
B MERERYHERD  c RAREHRILE  AEENAAR
P58 B EFARIEA2% (20155  27%) & 71%(20154F :
74%) BUERX—ERENEESETER -

BERESEBACERREEME14FEE -

I AN NREXARAF
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R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB BEMN)

22  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)  Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s
financial liabilities which are based on the contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date the Group and the Company can be required to

pay:

22 BREREERAFEE

(b) ESREBMEER

AEEETZENEBEREREZERSERASE B
REHRSBHRIREMIEMEFUNENRSFT R - KEE
ZBRRBEMERRE NIEMZRBDIEFT R - AEREE
FRRARSHERANSHESR 7 ES  WEDEEH
REMRBEFE -

TRINEAEEZTENSRABRRERRZHBTE
WHIRFFS - EEERAN LR AMBAZRER (BHER
BROEZNE KM FBHNEHENBERR - StEZ
MBI EAKBERPEREERZ AMGFE ¢

2016 2015

Total Total
contractual Within contractual Within
undiscounted 6 months undiscounted 6 months
cash flow oron cash flow oron
Carrying  #iHEEH demand Camying  HHEAH demand
amount MEENE  6EARI amount  FUREEE  6EAAL
REE ZBER  EXERR REE ZEER  BERERR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR AR BRI BETT BETTT BETTT
Trade and other payables B A REMENRE 173,427 173,427 173,427 173,684 173,684 173,684

In order to manage the liquidity demands above, at 31
December 2016, HK$251,634,475 (2015: HK$244,472,180)
of the Group’s assets, was held as cash that is considered
readily realisable.

Annual Report 2016

AHRFEELMESREE K BN2016F12 318 &
SEEFEAESHMER RGN EE BB 251,634,475 7T
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Rk B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from cash
and cash equivalents which were contracted at short-term
variable rates and expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk. The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by
management is set out in (i) below.

(BVBEREMN)

22 BHEREERAFEE)
(c) FIEREBS

AEBZAXRERETERREIRNEFTEEE ZHTEREH
FEHARESBAEEERSREMNNERR - AEBEZF
EEPR M EREERLEI| (AT

(i) Interest rate risk (i) T == [ ez
2016 2015
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate rate
% %
BIRF=E HK$°000 EBRFI% HK$’000
% BT T % BT I
Fixed rate bank deposits ~ #R77 7€ AR1F 5K & & 1 = 0.55 179,241 0.55 147,716
Variable rate bank deposits  #$R17FE BT RUE & 0.10 34,572 0.10 94,844
(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (i) SBREIN

At 31 December 2016, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would increase/
decrease the Group’s profit after tax and retained earnings
by approximately HK$539,000 (2015: HK$886,000)
respectively. Other components of equity would not be
affected (2015: HK$NIl) by changes in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been applied to
the exposure to interest rate risk for financial instruments
in existence at that date. The 100 basis point increase
or decrease represents management’s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rates over the
period until the next annual reporting date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2015.

R2016F 12 A1 HEMBEMELEZEHETENIBENR
T fhEF— AR R R AR 100 26T 0 #595 BIE N,
B AREE 2 BRI R A D BEREL 5 BB 539,000
JC (20154 : B#886,0007T) - HMbEE T FI KB
L (20154 - BT L) o

N ERBERESNEREFNEZEH O RNRERRTEME
Al WEEARNZBEHRBTERIETEMET
BZFMERK - 1008 FE MR IEEEBHEE T —
MEEREPRPE AR EBLE 2T o DINIE
2015 F AR 2 FAEHETT ©

I AN NREXARAF
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R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB BEMN)
22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d)
(i)

Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency transactions

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through

22 HHEEREERAFE@®
(d SRR
(@  INERS

AEBTZHRNUAZFREEBNEEEUIN2ERTIE

sales and expense transactions that are denominated in a WA i BAAEINER - BKESERB 2 E¥ X
currency other than the functional currency of the operations ~ Z&ETLREE ©
to which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily United States Dollar and British Pound.
(i)  Recognised assets and liabilities (i) CEIREERESRE
In respect of trade receivables and payables held in  ZERUBBZIMEEEUIINZ EBFEZHMBE SRR K
currencies other than the functional currency of the BERNHIE  AREEEVEENTRE HHE’]T”?&TE-? NIRE
operations to which they relate, the Group ensures that the [EXREANBEHINE - BRFFESHST —ETEZH
net exposure is kept to an acceptable level, by buying or 2% ©
selling foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary to
address short-term imbalances.
(iii)  The following table details the Group’s exposure at (i)  TERIIRAEERIRE BIRE B L IRKER AT
the end of the reporting period to currency risk arising BREBII—BEEIENEENBEMARL
from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in BB KRR o
a currency other than the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate.
2016 2015
United United
States British States British
Dollars Pounds Dollars Pounds
Epw EE ETT R
’000 ’000 ‘000 ‘000
T F &5 T T4
Trade and other receivables & 5 I E Ath fE I BRIE 23,372 837 21,383 201
Cash and cash equivalents ¥4 KIREZEEHE 30,477 452 27,656 310
Trade and other payables B 5 R EtfEERIA (8,105) - (7,720) -
Net exposure arising from  HIERZ EEK
recognised assets and BEMBUFE
liabilities 45,744 1,289 41,319 511
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Rk B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

22  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

(iv)  Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the approximate change in the
Group’s profit after tax and retained earnings in response to
reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange rates
to which the Group has significant exposure at the end of
the reporting period.

22
(d) INERBS (%)
(iv) HREDW

BEREERERAFRE S

(BVBEREMN)

TREEBEASEERARERRIEMAZXERNRARZERZ

GELIL

BHBRIREBEERREBNEKRZROED -

2016 2015

Effect Effect

Increase/ on profit Increase/ on profit
(decrease) in after tax and (decrease) in after tax and
foreign retained foreign retained
exchange earnings exchange earnings
rate HRBIZ rate HEREIE

EREm BARRE BEE &3 0, A AR
OR2) BRIz & R ) B2
HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

British Pounds £33 5% 580 5% 247
(5%) (580) (5%) (247)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit after tax and retained earnings measured in
the respective functional currencies, translated into Hong
Kong Dollar at the exchange rate ruling as at the end of the
reporting period for presentation purposes.

ERFIRZOMGERIEZRER AR BB ZBRHRE D
REBGEEERBERARZEXR(RERME) LaRE

TLRTE Z B Z 85T -

ZE—NFFR

NEREXBRAF
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R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB BEMN)

22  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued)
(iv)  Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that
the change in foreign exchange rates occurred at the end
of the reporting period and applied to each of the Group
entities” exposure to currency risk for non-derivative financial
instruments in existence at that date, and that all other
variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. In
this respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate between
the Hong Kong Dollar and the United States Dollar would
be materially unaffected by any changes in movement in
value of the United States Dollar against other currencies.
The percentage of increase and decrease in foreign
exchange rate represents the management’s assessment of
reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rates over
the period until the next annual reporting date. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2015.

(e) Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially
different from their fair value as at 31 December 2016 and
2015.

23  MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

(@) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group

represents amounts paid to the Company’s executive
directors as disclosed in note 7.

22 BIKEREERAFEGE

(d) MRS (8)
(iv) BRESW(E)

FREDMIBEREXREHNBERRELE - WEARK
SESEBURZANFEZFTESRTAMARY 2E
R MAAEMAZERZ(OLEMNE)REAE - 5
b BRAETHETZHAEREIGRRTABREME
BZEPMIEATE - I BB REEEBMGEIESR
REET—AFERSHARIEAE 2 EIEATEEE) - £1T
DT 2 EHEEL 2015 FF kiR 2 EREAER o

(e) AY¥E
FrE€mT Az ABRSFEEER 2016 F £ 2015F 12 A 31
AZ AFEESERTE -

23 BBAZERRZRER

@ FEEEEAEMS

EETBEREA LM BEL AL THITES NI
" -

2016 2015

HK$ HK$

TR iokia

Short-term employee benefits pSEI==EEw 10,724,263 10,463,436
Post-employment benefits BIEREA 661,500 655,750
11,385,763 11,119,186

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 5(a)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Rk B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
(Continued)

Other related party transactions

On May 2014, the Company entered into two
agreements with RJW Technology Company
Limited (“RJW Technology”) to acquire six precise
electrochemical machining machines (“PECM
Machines”) and the proprietary technologies,
intellectual properties and technical information
in relation to the PECM Machines (“PECM
Technologies”) for a total cash consideration of
HK$12,000,000 and HK$4,000,000, respectively.
RJW Technology is owned as to 50% by each of
the two executive directors, Mr. Wong, John Ying
Man and Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin. Details of
the two agreements are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 12 May 2014.

At 31 December 2015, five PECM Machines and
PECM Technologies with a value of HK$9,050,000
and HK$4,000,000 respectively had been transferred
to the Group. Included in the trade and other
payables of the Group and the Company were
payables to RJW Technology of HK$2,950,000 (2015:
HIK$NIl).

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
last PECM Machine with a value of HK$2,950,000
was transferred to the Group. As such, all PECM
machines and Technologies had been delivered
to the Group at 31 December 2016. The balance
of HK$2,950,000 (2015: HK$Nil) due to RJW
Technology has not yet been paid at 31 December
and was included in the trade and other payables of
the Group and the Company.

Balances with fellow subsidiaries are
disclosed in the Company’s statement of
financial position contained in note 26(a).

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

After the end of the reporting period, the directors proposed
a final dividend and a special dividend. Further details are
disclosed in note 20(b).
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(LB ARER)
25  SUBSIDIARIES’ INFORMATION 25 KMBATER

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries FE2AEE 2 ¥E - EERBECMBRTFBAT « B
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities Al + FT3sHE 2 R AL @A -

of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless

otherwise stated.

Particulars of Proportion of
issued and paid ownership interest held
Place of Place of up capital by the Company Principal
Name of company incorporation operation BERTR b O activities
NEER Bl g BRRAZFE BYER TEEHR
Mass Top Corporation The British Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 100% Property holding
Virgin Islands Bk 1REBERER 1T RENE
ERRENS
Raymond (Panyu Nansha) Electrical The PRC The PRC Registered capital 100% Manufacture and sale
Appliances Development Company H i US$22,380,000 of electrical home
Limited (Note 1) AR appliances
MR (EBEY) EEER 22,380,000% 7T RERHE
ARAF (FE1) FRES
Note: BT
1 The statutory financial statements of Raymond (Panyu (1) MR (FBEEY)ERERABBRAREZE2016F12A31H
Nansha) Electrical Appliances Development Company IEz FEMBRFREPEST TG - SEHEENES
Limited for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 BEATEBAERAAEZ

respectively, prepared under generally accepted accounting
principles applicable in the PRC, have been audited by E M|
EXYeTEBAAERAR.
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IRE M
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(\BREN)
26 FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 26 ZXATEBEER
COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position @) HBRRE
2016 2015
HK$ HKS$
ik Nidact
Non-current assets REEE
Property, plant and equipment EmBNEE 541,325 720,610
Investments in subsidiaries IERN 173,702,979 173,703,041
174,244,304 174,423,651
Current assets MEBRARKRE
Inventories "E 2,388,696 2,177,159
Trade and other receivables B 5 NE M EIERIA 194,461,266 172,612,128
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFEU T B~ =1BRIA 5,119,217 46,402,647
Tax recoverable AR EIFIR 541,174 1,549,617
Cash and cash equivalents Re kRS EIAR 225,845,739 219,297,922
428,356,092 442,039,473
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables g 5 RHEMERIRIE 103,919,209 101,391,232
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEAHI B A =1BRIE 22,110,114 19,888,723
Dividends payable FERARE 336,247 203,787
126,365,570 121,483,742
Net current assets REEEFE 301,990,522 320,555,731
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABHERS 476,234,826 494,979,382
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Deferred tax liabilities BIETRIEEE 148,242 148,242
NET ASSETS EEFRE 476,086,584 494,831,140
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR#E
Share capital [N 448,167,336 445,820,688
Other reserves Efthf# 27,919,248 49,010,452
TOTAL EQUITY AR 476,086,584 494,831,140

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors

on 28 March 2017.

Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae
A
Director

EF

2017 3 A28 HEEE S A NIRRT -

Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin

BN
Director

EF

ZE—NFFR

NEREXBRAF
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(LB BEMN)

26 FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 26 ZARATMBEER#)

COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Details of changes in the Company’s (b) TREHAR LD F)ERIEHEAKIRDFAERF

individual components of reserve during the KN BE S
year:
Share Capital Retained Total
capital reserve earnings equity
(Z REEF ERfE AR
Note HK$ HKS HKS HKS
[ ok Bk ok ek
At 1 January 2015 H2015F1 A1 A& 438,527,402 4,619,609 37,288,751 480,435,762
Changes in equity for 2015: 2015 EHEE
Profit and total comprehensive KEENREZE
income for the year gt - - 46,133,729 46,133,729
Dividends approved in BAERS
respect of the
— current year - AF 20(b)(i) - - (9,546,845) (9,546,845)
- previous year - 20(0)(i) - - (28,555,336) (28,555,336)
Shares issued under share BREE T RN
option scheme
- gross proceeds - s 20(a)) 6,363,830 - - 6,363,830
—transfer from capital reserve - HERGHEER 929,456 (929,456) - -
Cancellation of share options BB - (201,986) 201,986 -
7,293,286 (1,131,442) 8,233,534 14,395,378
At 31 December 2015 W2015% 12 A 31 B &8 445,820,688 3,488,167 45,522,285 494,831,140
At 1 January 2016 R2016 1 51 BER 445,820,688 3,488,167 45,522,285 494,831,140
Changes in equity for 2016: 2016 FHEED :
Profit and total comprehensive AERTIR2ANELE
income for the year - - 7,961,780 7,961,780
Dividends approved in BERE
respect of the
_ current year _KE 20(b)() - - (9,597,446) (9,597,446)
~ previous year -5 20(o)(i - - (19,149,690) (19,149,690)
Shares issued under share B TR0
option scheme
- gross proceeds - Ela 20(a)i) 2,040,800 - - 2,040,800
— transfer from capital reserve - RELRRFEEY 305,848 (305,848) - -
Cancellation of share options BUER MR - (151,944) 151,944 -
2,346,648 (457,792) (20,633,412) (18,744,556
At 31 December 2016 W2016 F£12 A 31 A&t 448,167,336 3,030,375 24,888,873 476,086,584

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd.

Annual Report 2016




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Rk B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

27 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS

The methods, estimates and judgements the directors used
in applying the Group’s accounting policies have a significant
impact on the Group’s financial position and operating
results. Some of the accounting policies require the Group
to apply estimates and judgements, on matters that are
inherently uncertain. The critical accounting judgements
in applying the Group’s accounting policies are described
below.

(2)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis or reducing balance basis over the estimated
useful lives. The Group reviews annually the useful life of an
asset and its residual value, if any. The depreciation expense
for future periods is adjusted if there are significant changes
from the previous estimation.

(b)

In considering the impairment loss that may be required
for certain property, plant and equipment, interests in
leasehold land held for own use under operating leases, and
investments in subsidiaries, the recoverable amount of the
asset needs to be determined. The recoverable amount is
the greater of the fair value less costs of disposal and the
value in use. It is difficult to estimate precisely the fair value
price because quoted market prices for the assets may not
be readily available. In determining the value in use, expected
cash flows generated by the asset are discounted to their
present value, which requires significant judgement relating
to items such as level of revenue and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is a reasonable approximation
of the recoverable amount, including estimates based on
reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections of
items such as revenue and operating costs.

Depreciation

Impairments

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are assessed
and provided based on the directors’ regular review of
the ageing analysis and an evaluation of collectability. A
considerable level of judgement is exercised by the directors
when assessing the credit worthiness and past collection
history of each individual customer.

(BVBEREMN)
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(LB BEMN)
27 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b)  Impairments (Continued)
An increase or decrease in the above impairment loss would
affect the operating results in the year and in future years.

(c)

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions and
interpretation of tax rules. The Group carefully evaluates
the tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are
set up accordingly. The tax treatment of transactions is
reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes in
tax legislation.

Income taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not
yet used and temporary deduction differences. Those
deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future profit will be available against
which the unused tax credit can be utilised, consequently
management’s judgement is required to assess the
probability of future taxable profits. Management’s
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional deferred
tax assets are recognised if it becomes probable that
future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

As mentioned in note 12, the PRC tax authorities had
initiated a transfer-pricing audit on a subsidiary of the
Company in the PRC in respect of the years ended
31 December 2002 to 2011. The Group has been in
discussions with the PRC tax authorities with a view to
conclude the transfer pricing audit. At 31 December 2016,
a total provision of HK$13,609,000 (2015: HK$12,556,000)
has been made against the potential tax adjustment
estimated by management relating to the transfer-pricing
audit. Due to uncertainty inherent in the transfer pricing
audit, its outcome could be different from the amount
provided and such difference would impact the income tax
provision in the year in which any determination is made.

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. Annual Report 2016

27  EEH{hEETRHE @)

(b)
EAUBE ETRIE DNSOR A R BRI 2 s M F AR

() Fi8H
EEMSHBESREETLSRKRIBRIE 2 5 EH LK
BRAlzRE - AEEFEBFGERZ 2B EFHE Wik
IR B IEE S - ZER P ZHIBRIE T E M - AR
NMEIBE 2 P EE) -

RIERIBEETI L AS) MERFINREZR 2 N IAEEE
R o AN FIEETIRE B &R R HOHEH A% 7] B EE 85 M
APREREREAIS AT SRR - EEEANERKE
RPUE N 2 AT RENE o BIRE 2 AHE TYE HIRAT o AR R
Rt M AP ERE TR B B E - RIS R BEINETER
HEE °

it sE12 - REBEE R A — B A F A #2002
FE2011F12 A1 HFEEREE - SESEFERF5
BEHEARANEREEESHY - N2016F12A31HE
BERBERERBEFELEBERERSEHBBELE
13,609,000 7T (2015 £F = 7 #£ 12,556,000 7T ° A T € 1F
EREREEEDS  SRERFEBEEEZE  ZE2ERN
ERERZFERME -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ‘

Rk B B &t
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27 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
(d) Inventory provision

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying amounts
of inventories with reference to aged inventories analyses,
projections of expected future saleability of goods and
management experience and judgement. Based on these
reviews, write-down of inventories will be made when the
carrying amounts of inventories fall below their estimated net
realisable value. Due to changes in customers’ performance,
actual saleability of goods may be different from estimates
and profit or loss could be affected by differences from
estimates.

(e)

The estimate of the fair value of the share options granted
to employees and other eligible persons measured by
professional valuers based on the Black Scholes model with
modifications to reflect the impact of vesting periods and
exercise patterns on the option value. The accuracy of the
above estimates could affect the amount of share-based
payments transactions recognised in profit or loss.

Share-based payments

28 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Since 1 January 2016, information reported internally to the
Group’s senior management relating to reportable segments
on a geographical basis has been changed. Asia (excluding
Japan and the PRC) has been identified and distinguished
from “the rest of the world” as a new reportable segment.
Accordingly, the relevant comparative figures in note 10 have
been reclassified to conform to current year’s presentation.

(BVBEREMN)
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29  POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
3| DECEMBER 2016

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of
amendments and new standards which are not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2016 and which have not
been adopted in these consolidated financial statements.
These include the following which may be relevant to the
Group:

Statement of cash flows:
Disclosure initiative'

Amendments to HKAS 7

Income taxes:
Recognition of deferred
tax assets for unrealised

Amendments to HKAS 12

losses’
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments?
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts

with customers?
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based payment:
Classification and
measurement of share-
based payment
transactions?

HKFRS 16 Leases?®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2017.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018.
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019.
128 RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. Annual Report 2016
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

29  POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FORTHE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2016 (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far
the Group has identified some aspects of the new standards
which may have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements. Further details of the expected impacts
are discussed below. As the Group has not completed its
assessment, further impacts may be identified in due course
and will be taken into consideration when determining
whether to adopt any of these new requirements before
their effective date and which transitional approach to take,
where there are alternative approaches allowed under the
new standards.

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting
for financial instruments, HKAS 39, Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement of financial
assets, calculation of impairment of financial assets and
hedge accounting. On the other hand, HKFRS incorporates
without substantive changes the requirements of HKAS 39
for recognition and derecognition of financial instruments
and the classification of financial liabilities. Expected impacts
of the new requirements on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements are as follows:
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(LB BEMN)
29  POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FORTHE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2016 (Continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

(a) Classification and measurement

HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories
for financial assets: measured at (1) amortised cost, (2)
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) and (3) fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) as follows:

° The classification for debt instruments is determined
based on the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the asset. If a debt instrument
is classified as FVTOCI then effective interest,
impairments and gains/losses on disposal will be
recognised in profit or loss.

° For equity securities, the classification is FVTPL
regardless of the entity’s business model. The
only exception is if the equity security is not held
for trading and the entity irrevocably elects to
designate that security as FVTOCI. If an equity
security is designated as FVTOCI then only dividend
income on that security will be recognsied in other
comprehensive income without recycling.

Based on the preliminary assessment, the Group expects
that its financial assets currently measured at amortised cost
and FVTPL will continue with their respective classification
and measurements upon the adoption of HKFRS 9.

The classification and measurement requirements for
financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 largely unchanged from
HKAS 39, except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value
change of a financial liability designated as FVPTL that is
attributable to changes of that financial liability’s own credit
risk to be recognised in other comprehensive income (without
reclassification to profit or loss). A more detailed analysis is
required to determine the extent of the impact.
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29  POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FORTHE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2016 (Continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Impairment

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces the
“incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with an “expected credit
loss” model. Under the expected credit loss model, it will
no longer be necessary for a loss event to occur before an
impairment loss is recognised. Instead, an entity is required
to recognise and measure expected credit losses as either
12-month expected credit losses or lifetime expected
credit losses, depending on the asset and the facts and
circumstances. This new impairment model may result in
an earlier recognition of credit losses on the Group’s trade
receivable. However, a more detailed analysis is required to
determine the extent of the impact.

HKFRS |5, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue from contracts with customers. HKFRS
15 will replace the existing revenue standards, HKAS 18,
Revenue, which covers revenue arising from sale of goods
and rendering of services, and HKAS 11, Construction
contracts, which specified the accounting for revenue from
construction contracts. The Group is currently assessing the
impacts of adopting HKFRS 15 on its consolidated financial
statements. Based on the preliminary assessment, the
Group has identified the following areas which are likely to
be effected:
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(LB BEMN)

29  POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEVW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FORTHEYEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2016 (Continued)

HKFRS |5, Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(@) Timing of revenue recognition

The Group’s revenue recognition policies are
disclosed in note 2(p). Currently, revenue arising from
the sale of goods is generally recognised when the
risks and rewards of ownership have passed to the
customers.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the
customer obtains control of the promised good
or service in the contract. HKFRS 15 identified 3
situations in which control of the promised good or
service is regarded as being transferred over time;

() When the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the
entity’s performance, as the entity performs;

(b) When the entity’s performance creates or
enhances an asset (for example work in
progress) that the customer controls as the
asset is created or enhanced;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Rk B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

29  POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2016 (Continued)

HKFRS |5, Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(a) Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

(c) When the entity’s performance does not
create an asset with an alternative use to the
entity and the entity has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to
date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities
do not fall into any of these 3 situations,
then under HKFRS 15 the entity recognises
revenue for the sale of that good or service
at a single point in time, being when control
has passed. Transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership is only one of the indicators that
will be considered in determining when the
transfer of control occurs.

As a result of this change from the risk-and-
reward approach to the contract-by-contract
transfer-of-control approach, it is possible that
the point in time when revenue is recognised
may be earlier or later than under the current
accounting policy. However, further analysis is
required to determine whether this change in
accounting policy may have a material impact
on the amounts reported in any given financial
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LB BEMN)

29  POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 29 EZ20l6F 1283 BHIEFECHEMBER
NEW STANDARDS AND 2185 - HERRBREZBERE
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT (%)

YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
3| DECEMBER 2016 (Continued)
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers &EEREERFE 1558 BEFFTLSRBNKA

(Continued) (%8)

(b) Significant financing component (b)
HKFRS 15 requires an entity to adjust the transaction
price for the time value of money when a contract
contains a significant financing component,
regardless of whether the payments from customers

are received significantly in advance or in arrears.

Currently, the Group would only apply such policy
when payments are significantly deferred, which is
currently not common in the Group’s arrangements
with its customers. Currently, the Group does not
apply such a policy when payment are received in
advance.

Sales with a right of return

Currently when the customers are allowed to return
the products, the Group estimates the level of returns
and makes and adjustment against revenue and cost
of sales.

The Group expects that the adoption of HKFRS 15
will not materially affect how the Group recognises
revenue and cost of sales when the customers have
a right of return. However, the new requirement to
recognise separately a return asset for the products
expected to be returned will impact the presentation
in the consolidated statement of financial position
as the Group currently adjusts the carrying amounts
of inventory for the expected returns, instead of
recognising a separate asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Rk B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

29  POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FORTHE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2016 (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 2(f), currently the Group classifies leases
into finance leases and operating leases and accounts
for the lease arrangements differently, depending on the
classification of the lease. The Group enters into some
leases as the lessor and others as the lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way
that lessors account for their right and obligations under a
lease. However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will
no longer distinguish between finance leases and operating
leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients, lessees will
account for all leases in a similar way to current finance lease
accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the lease
the lessee will recognise and measure a lease liability at the
present value of the minimum future lease payments and will
recognise a corresponding “right-of-use” asset. After initial
recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee will recognise
interest expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the
lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset,
instead of the current policy of recognising rental expenses
incurred under operating leases on a systematic basis over
the lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can elect
not to apply this accounting model to short-term leases (i.e.
where the lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of
low-value assets, in which case the rental expenses would
continue to be recognised on a systematic basis over the
lease term.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a
lessee of leases for properties, plant and equipment which
are currently classified as operating leases. The application
of the new accounting model is expected to lead to an
increase both assets and liabilities and to impact on the
timing of the expense recognition in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss over the period of the lease.
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Five Years Financial Summary
IFHBERE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR #HREB#HEEK

LOSS
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T BT T AT T
Revenue A 1,278,079 1,182,806 1,034,875 088,449 1,019,442
Profit before taxation BRA AT 59,989 44,723 44,169 44,745 72,704
Income tax FriS#i (12,988) (11,718) (15,883) (8,417) (21,693)
Profit for the year and /NG gy et
attributable to equity R B 2 S K
shareholders of the
Company 47,001 33,005 28,286 36,328 51,011
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL #RE Bk R %
POSITION
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT IT T IT BT T BT T BT T
Property, plant and Y - BB MRS
equipment 210,526 196,864 196,514 165,693 145,331
Interests in leasehold land ~ 1RIBE LA EREE
held for own use under Bz ik
operating leases 9,658 9,538 9,076 8,142 7,251
Deferred tax assets EERIBE E 8,996 7,987 7,476 8,346 4,910
Net current assets MEEEFE 329,785 381,318 383,356 382,380 414,705
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHIEAE (193) (182) (174) (168) (308)
Net assets BEFE 558,772 595,525 596,248 564,393 571,889
Share capital f& s 216,487 233,390 438,527 445,821 448,167
Reserves 1 342,285 362,135 157,721 118,572 123,722
Total equity attributable to 7N/ AR FRFE(G %S
equity shareholders of
the Company 558,772 595,525 596,248 564,393 571,889
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